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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM (“GEM"”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Netcom Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

FiERS

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the annual results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “"Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2017 on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of Directors
of the Company.

During the year of 2017, the economy of China had maintained an
upward and stable trend as a whole, and the drive of economic
growth had been switched to foreign trade and overseas
investment from domestic investment and exports. Under the
backdrop of the reform of the domestic financial system and the
marketisation of interest rate, as well as the reform of economic
system featuring “supply-side reform”, the stock market, which
is considered to be an "economic barometer”, had a more
favourable environment for capital development as a result. The
year of 2017 is also an important period for the development of
the Group.

According to the development trend of financial sector in
China, innovative financial services characterised by financial
technologies have become the new drive serving the financial
inclusion system, and a number of new business models have
been developed within the scope of innovative financial services,
resulting in the achievement of popularity and technology-wise
of financial services, in an efficient and low cost manner with the
help of core financial technology components such as big data,
artificial intelligence, machine deep learning and block chain. With
the massive trend mentioned above, 51RENPIN.COM INC., the new
substantial shareholder who joined in 2017, possesses a leading
position in the provision of financial technology services in China,
with powerful “scene entrances (%= A M)", strong processing
capacity of big data and in-depth experience in operating financial
products, which all serve to facilitate the layout of providing a full
range of innovative financial services.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

TS

From the aspect of the substantial reform of the consumption
sector, the penetration rate of Internet, comprising E-commerce,
020 and physical offline outlets, has become higher. As a
result, the public is able to enjoy more convenient payment and
consumption experience, as well as convenient financial services
focused on the personal spending financial sector, including
personal credit loan matching services, instalment payment and
personal credit management services. In addition, with more
Internet features, the domestic consumption financial sector will
showcase a booming expansion in scale. In order to develop an
influential position in the capital market to generate remarkable
return to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”),
it is important for the Group to diversify its original business to
secure a firm foothold in the new economy and to establish its
capacity of serving the society.

In the coming years, the Group will focus on capitalising on the
new development trend of the society and the economy and
leveraging on the Group's competitive edges in the capital market
for the purpose of self-upgrading in designated aspects. In future,
the Group will further explore opportunities in the sectors of
innovative social consumption and financial services to optimise
its business layout and ability in product services.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my heartfelt
appreciation to you as our Shareholders for your continuous
support, and to thank all our employees for their dedicated efforts
and invaluable contribution to the Group. Facing with the booming
development of financial technologies, the Group will spare no
effort to identify opportunities for its sustainable development
SO as to cope with the development trend of the sector and to
create an even higher value for you as our Shareholders and
stakeholders.

Sun Haitao
Chairman and Executive Director

20 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EI)=E5dsmhe i
FINANCIAL REVIEW B 7% B 8
FINANCIAL RESULTS B ¥R

The consolidated revenue of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately
HK$28,303,000 as compared with approximately HK$2,011,000
last year. Loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$48,293,000 as compared with approximately
HK$37,043,000 last year.

The increase in loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
year was mainly attributable to the increase in impairment loss on
concession rights. As disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 16 January 2018, having considered the estimated cash flow
to be generated from the welfare lottery business in Shenzhen
and Chongging, the relevant operating environment and market
conditions as well as the view of the independent professional
valuer, management decided to make a full impairment of the
concession rights that amounted to approximately HK$58,239,000.

Excluding the effect of the concession right impairment and
the related deferred tax effect, the loss for the year would be
approximately HK$27,692,000 (2016: HK$36,799,000), representing
a decrease of approximately HK$9,107,000 from last year. Such
decrease was mainly contributed by the surge in revenue from
the Group’s financial technology services business and smart
wearable device business for the year.

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

LIQUIDITY AND GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2017, the Group recorded total assets
of approximately HK$70,500,000 (2016: approximately
HK$92,088,000), total liabilities of approximately HK$63,124,000
(2016: approximately HK$71,417,000) and cash and bank balances
(excluding pledged bank deposit) of approximately HK$59,173,000
(2016: approximately HK$23,817,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio of the Group
was approximately 671% (2016: approximately 212%), based
on the total borrowings of approximately HK$49,516,000
(2016: approximately HK$43,923,000) and the total equity of
approximately HK$7,376,000 (2016: approximately HK$20,671,000).
The high gearing ratio was due to the full impairment made on
the concession right during the year which substantially reduced
the total assets. The total borrowings solely represent the Group’s
convertible bonds. After the exercise of the conversion right
attached to the Group’s convertible bonds on 26 January 2018, the
gearing ratio of the Group has dropped significantly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB saRhe i

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s total number of issued
ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each was 4,629,368,382 (2016:
3,120,035,049 ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each).

The Company had no issued non-redeemable convertible
preferred shares as at 31 December 2017 (2016: 1,003,333,333
preferred shares of HK$0.005 each) as all such shares had been
converted to ordinary shares on 12 April 2017.

Details of the movement in the Company’s share capital during
the year were set out in notes 25 and 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS
Details of the movements in the Company’s share options and
convertible bonds during the year were set out in notes 27 and 23
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no asset that was
pledged (2016: a fixed deposit of approximately HK$216,000 was
pledged).

CAPITAL INVESTMENT AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL ASSET
PURCHASE

During the year, the Group paid approximately HK$1,377,000
(2016: HK$2,524,000) for the purchase of property, plant and
equipment. Save as disclosed in this report, the Group had no
specific plan for material investment or acquisition of capital
assets as at 31 December 2017.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION
RATES

The Group's sales and purchases for the year were mostly
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") and Renminbi (“RMB”).

IN EXCHANGE

RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Future exchange rates
of RMB could vary significantly from the current or historical
exchange rates as a result of controls that could be imposed by
the PRC government. The exchange rates may also be affected
by economic developments and political changes domestically
and internationally, and the demand and supply of RMB. The
appreciation or devaluation of RMB against HK$ may have impact
on the operation results of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B e i

The Group monitors its foreign currency risks and will consider
hedging significant currency exposures should the need arises.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2016: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Financial Technology Services Business

The Group started to carry out financial technology services
business at the end of September 2017. The scale of this
business achieved remarkable development from scratch through
professional marketing and precision promotion with the basis of
reasonable product design and market positioning. The maximum
borrowings accumulated in a single month amounted to RMB120
million. More than 200,000 transactions in total in the year of
2017 were reached, the trading users exceeded 100,000 and the
revenue generated reached HK$17,296,000. The business has
grown and become one of the Group's very important businesses
and revenue growth points.

However, the above business is very sensitive to the changes
in national policies. On 1 December 2017, the PRC government
promulgated the “Regulations on Regulating the “Cash Loan”
Business” [2017] No. 141 so as to supervise the country’s Internet
lending industry. The uncertainties caused by the new regulatory
requirements affected the Group’s financial technology services
business in December 2017 and thus the Group has re-adjusted its
products mix accordingly in early 2018. The management believes
that the abovementioned impact is transient and will not impede
the long-term development of the Group’s financial technology
services business.

Smart Wearable Device Business

2017 was a breakthrough year for the Group’s smart wearable
device business as the Group’s year-long research effort in 2016
has paid off. In late March 2017, the Group’s smart glasses were
awarded the 3C certification issued by China Quality Certification
Centre. The Group also obtained the CE certification issued by
the European Union and the FCC certification issued by the
United States of America in April and May 2017 respectively,
which enables the Group to sell its products in China, Europe
and the United States of America. The Group is still continuously
developing and upgrading the functions of the next generation
smart glasses and smart fitness watches. For the year 2017,
approximately 7,000 pairs of smart glasses and 22,000 smart
fitness watches have been sold, which generated revenue of
approximately HK$5,573,000 and HK$2,983,000, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB saRhe i

Lottery Business

The Group continued to operate its lottery business during the
year and has well positioned itself to expand this business in
Shangdong. In late 2016 and August 2017, &I ELP ERIEH
fR A A] (transliterated as Shenzhen Gaorong Caizi Technology
Company Limited (“Shenzhen Gaorong”)), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into cooperative agreements
and amendment agreements (the “Agreements”) with each of
Shandong Province Sports Lottery Management Centre and an
independent third party, respectively for the development of the
sports lottery sales network in Shandong in relation to conducting
sports lottery sales business.

Pursuant to the Agreements, Shenzhen Gaorong is responsible for
providing relevant technical services and is entitled to collect a
particular percentage of the revenue from the sales network. As
of end of December 2017, the applications for the establishment
of a total of 1,068 sales points in various cities in Shangdong had
been submitted and 488 of which had been approved.

The 2017 annual turnover of the Group's lottery business
amounted to approximately HK$223,000 (2016: approximately
HK$336,000), representing a decrease of 34% as compared to the
same period of last year.

With reference to the announcement of the Company dated
16 January 2018, the Company has re-assessed its welfare
lottery business in Shenzhen and Chongging during the year
and provided a full impairment of its related concession rights,
resulting in an impairment loss of approximately HK$58,239,000
for the year. While the lottery business contracts for these two
cities remains effective, the Directors are of the opinion that
they will not generate substantial profit for the Group in the
foreseeable future.

Sports Training Business

The Group operates the Hui So Hung Table Tennis Training Centre
in Hong Kong to provide table tennis training services to students
with different ages and levels. This business has maintained
stable growth as the number of students and revenue continued
to increase for the year. Revenue from sports training business
for 2017 was approximately HK$2,228,000 (2016: approximately
HK$1,675,000), representing an increase of 33% from last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B e i

Termination of the Proposed Cooperation with Caissa
Travel and Airports Corporation of Vietnam

On 3 January 2017, Max Choice Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a letter of intent
for strategic cooperation agreement with Caissa Tongsheng
Travel Service (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Caissa Travel”) and Airports
Corporation of Vietnam in relation to its business development in
Phu Quoc (2 E &) (the “Letter of Intent”). Details of the Letter
of Intent were set out in the Company’'s announcement dated
9 January 2017. However, the possible transaction with Caissa
Travel in Phu Quoc was terminated in August 2017 as a result of
the failure of reaching a concrete cooperation plan between the
relevant parties.

PROSPECTS

The potential of the financial technology industry is significant.
The Group will actively follow the direction of the industry’s
development and the latest policies. With the initial basis built in
2017, the financial technology services business is expected to
further expand its business scale with the promotion of brands,
the expansion of users and the accumulation of experiences.
At the same time, the Company will continue to optimize the
Group's existing lottery, smart wearable device and sports training
businesses, in order to strengthen the Group's financial position.

EMPLOYEES
As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total of 42 (2016:
38) employees.

The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees are kept
at a competitive level and employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the
Group's salary and bonus system, which is reviewed annually.

AUDITORS

There is no change in auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding 3 years.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFREREREBREFR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sun Haitao, aged 37, has been the Chairman and an
executive Director of the Company and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company since August 2017. Mr. Sun
graduated from Hangzhou Dianzi University, majoring in business
administration. He is an entrepreneur who has engaged in Internet
businesses since 2004, and founded several Internet companies
before founding Hangzhou Enniu Network Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Hangzhou Enniu”) in 2012. In May 2012, Mr. Sun led the team
to create the credit card management mobile application named
“51 Credit Card Manager” for Hangzhou Enniu and facilitated
Hangzhou Enniu to become a representative fintech company.
Hangzhou Enniu was awarded the Top 50 China’s Most Valuable
Investee Companies by Qingke in 2014 and 2015, selected as
Top 50 China’s Fintech Companies by Forbes, 2016 and 2018
Top 50 New Fintech Companies in China awarded by Hurun and
2016 Global Unicorn awarded by CB Insights, and continually
being selected as Top 50 China’s Leading Fintech Companies
awarded by KPMG in 2016 and 2017. Moreover, Hangzhou Enniu
was elected as the 2017 Fintech 100 that jointly awarded by H2
Ventures and KPMG, and has been quoted by Goldman Sachs
in {The Rise of China FinTech). Mr. Sun personally has been
honored the Entrepreneur of 2016 by Dark Horse, 2017 Chinese
Economic Figures by SINA and New Business 100 Annual Actors
by 36Kr etc. Mr. Sun is currently the chairman and general
manager of Hangzhou Enniu, and a director and the chairman of
51 Credit Card Inc., the ultimate parent company of the Company.

Mr. Zhao Ke, aged 34, has been an executive Director of the
Company and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company
since August 2017. Mr. Zhao graduated from Xi‘an Jiaotong
University in 2005, majoring in Finance, and in 2006 he received
a Master Degree in Economics from the University of Ottawa in
Canada. From August 2006 to September 2015, Mr. Zhao worked
at PricewaterhouseCoopers with his last position as a senior
manager of the firm’s capital market service group. Mr. Zhao is
a member of the China Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Zhao is currently a director and the chief
financial officer of Hangzhou Enniu, and a director of 51 Credit
Card Inc.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFREREREBRENR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Song Ke, aged 52, has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since August 2017. Mr. Song has over 20
years’ experience in entertainment and media industry. Mr. Song
founded “Maitian Music” in 1996 and served as its general
manager for 4 years since 1996, and then served as the executive
vice-president and production director for Warner Music Group
(China) from 2000 till 2004. Mr. Song founded Beijing Taihe Rye
Music Co., Ltd. in 2004 and served as its chief executive officer
and also the president of Taihe Media Investment Co., Ltd. for 8
years. He joined Evergrande Music as the chairman of board from
2012 to 2015 and then changed to work for Beijing Alibaba Music
Technology Co., Ltd. and has been serving as the chief executive
officer and the chairman of board from 2015 until now. Mr. Song
was an independent non-executive director of A8 New Media
Group Limited (stock code: 800), a company listed in Hong Kong
from May 2013 to May 2016. Mr. Song graduated from Tsinghua
University in July 1988 with a bachelor degree in environmental
engineering.

Mr. Wu Bo, aged 52, has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since August 2017. Mr. Wu is the founder
and chief executive officer of Meiaoju.com, a serial entrepreneur
in Internet sharing economy, artificial intelligence and deep
learning. Mr. Wu obtained his bachelor degree in automation
engineering from Tsinghua University and his master degree in
computer science from the Western Michigan University. Mr. Wu
has founded focus.cn (a leading Chinese real estate portal),
lashou.com (a Chinese top group buying site) and meiaoju.com (an
Internet service company which brings Chinese investments into
United States real estate development markets).

Mr. Michael Yu Tat Chi, aged 53, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since August 2017. Mr. Yu
obtained a bachelor of commerce degree from the University of
New South Wales, Australia. He is a fellow member of the CPA
Australia and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Yu is also a founding member of The
Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director Association.
Mr. Yu has many years of experience in accounting, corporate
finance and asset management. He had held senior management
positions in several listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Yu is
currently an independent non-executive director of Golden
Resources Development International Limited (stock code: 677),
EVOC Intelligent Technology Company Limited (stock code: 2308),
Applied Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 519) and
Lerado Financial Group Company Limited (stock code:1225), all of
these companies are listed in Hong Kong.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

£EBHRS

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2017 by business segments is set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to
179.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business, a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group, particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year 2017, and an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business, are set out in the
“CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT” and "MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS" sections of this report. These discussion form part of
the “REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS".

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Our commitment to protecting the environment is well reflected
by our continuous efforts in promoting green measures
and awareness in our daily business operations. Our Group
encourages environmental protection and promote awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. Our Group
also implements green office practices such as promoting the use
of recycled papers and reducing energy consumption by switching
off idle lighting and electrical appliances.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

£EBHRS

Our Group reviews its environmental practices from time to time
and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures
and practices in the operation of our Group’s businesses and
enhancing environmental sustainability.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by our Group that has a significant impact on the
business and operations of our Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable assets.
Thus our Group provides competitive remuneration package to
attract and motivate the employees. Our Group regularly reviews
the remuneration package of employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard.

Our Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners to achieve its long-term goals.
Accordingly, our Directors or senior management have kept good
communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared business
update with them when appropriate. During the year, there was
no material and significant dispute between our Group and its
business partners.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital, share
options and convertible bonds during the year are set out in notes
25 to 26, 27 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in notes 25 to 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements and the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

£EBHRS

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In accordance with the law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the Shareholders provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. As at 31
December 2017, the Company did not have any reserves available
for distribution (2016: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Under the Company’'s articles of association (“Articles”), or the
laws of Cayman Islands, there is no provision for pre-emptive
rights which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out
on page 180 of the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2017, of which this report forms part.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions of
approximately HK$8,000 (2016: Nil).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. There is
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the directors and officers of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

£EBHRS

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

CONVERTIBLE BOND

In August 2010, the Company issued approximately 664,580,000
(after adjusted for the share consolidation as effected on 27
February 2012) zero-coupon HK dollar denominated convertible
bonds to Mr. Leung Ngai Man (“Mr. Leung”), a former substantial
shareholder, and former chairman and executive director of the
Company. The convertible bonds have a maturity period of 5 years
from the issue date and can be convertible into one ordinary
share of the Company at HK$0.005 each for every HK$1.20
convertible bonds at the holder’s option (after adjusted for the
share consolidation as effected on 27 February 2012). Conversion
may occur at any time between 27 August 2010 and 26 August
2015.

The Company entered into a supplemental deed (the
“Supplemental Deed”) dated 24 August 2015 executed between
the Company and Mr. Leung, pursuant to which the Company and
Mr. Leung agreed to extend the maturity date of the convertible
bonds for 5 years from the date falling on the fifth year to the date
falling on the tenth year from the date of issue of the convertible
bond (the "Extension”). The Supplemental Deed was approved by
independent Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company (“EGM") held on 3 November 2015.

The extension allows the Company to finance the debts under
the convertible bond without any interest cost and enhance the
sufficiency of working capital of the Group.

During the year, no conversion of convertible bonds was
exercised. As at 31 December 2017, conversion of the remaining
convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$68,016,000 had not
yet been exercised.

On 24 January 2018, the Company received a conversion notice
from Mr. Leung to exercise the conversion rights attached to
the outstanding convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$50,000,000. 41,666,666 Shares were issued to Mr. Leung on 26
January 2018. Please refer to the section headed “EVENT AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD” for further details.
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£EBHRS

CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED SHARE PURCHASE
AGREEMENT

The Board was informed that on 11 April 2017, Mr. Leung (as
seller) and 51RENPIN.COM INC. (the “Offeror”) (as purchaser) had
entered into a convertible preferred share purchase agreement
(the "Convertible Preferred Share Purchase Agreement”)
pursuant to which Mr. Leung agreed to sell, and the Offeror
agreed to acquire, 1,003,333,333 convertible preferred shares
at the consideration of HK$82,273,333.31, being HK$0.082
per convertible preferred share. It was further stated in the
Convertible Preferred Share Purchase Agreement that the Offeror
shall, immediately upon completion of the sale and purchase of
the convertible preferred shares, exercise its conversion rights
attaching to the convertible preferred shares to convert all the
convertible preferred shares into ordinary shares. Completion of
the Convertible Preferred Share Purchase Agreement took place
on the same day.

Immediately after the completion of the sale and purchase of the
convertible preferred shares and pursuant to the terms of the
Convertible Preferred Share Purchase Agreement, the Company
received a notice of conversion from the Offeror in respect of
the exercise of conversion rights attaching to all the convertible
preferred shares. As a result of the exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the 1,003,333,333 convertible preferred shares,
1,003,333,333 ordinary shares were allotted and issued to the
Offeror on 12 April 2017 (the “Converted Shares"”). Please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 24 April 2017 for further
details.

SHARE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

The Board was further informed by Mr. Leung that, immediately
after allotment and issue of the 1,003,333,333 Converted Shares,
on the same date, Mr. Leung, the Offeror and Tiantu Investments
International Limited (“Tiantu International”) had entered into a
share purchase agreement (the “Share Purchase Agreement”)
pursuant to which (i) the Offeror and Tiantu International
had conditionally agreed to acquire 441,629,880 shares and
365,000,000 shares; and (ii) Mr. Leung had conditionally agreed
to sell an aggregate of 806,629,880 shares at an aggregate
consideration of HK$66,143,650.16, being HK$0.082 per share.
Completion of the sale and purchase of shares pursuant to the
Share Purchase Agreement took place on 18 April 2017. Please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 24 April 2017 for
further details.
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MANDATORY CONDITIONAL CASH OFFERS

Immediately after the allotment and issue of the Converted Shares
to the Offeror and the completion of the sale and purchase of
shares pursuant to the Share Purchase Agreement, the Offeror
and parties acting in concert with it became interested in an
aggregate of 1,809,963,213 shares representing approximately
43.89% of the total number of issued shares as at 24 April 2017.
Accordingly, the Offeror and parties acting in concert with it were
required to make a conditional mandatory cash offer to acquire
all the issued shares (other than those already owned or agreed
to be acquired by the Offeror and parties acting in concert with
it) pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers
and Mergers (the "Takeovers Code"”) at HK$0.082 per share (the
“Share Offer”). Pursuant to Rule 13.5 of the Takeovers Code, the
mandatory conditional cash offer had also been made to cancel
all the outstanding share options (the “Option Offer”, together
with the Share Offer, the "Offers”). As the condition was not
fulfilled, the Offers failed to become unconditional in all respects
and lapsed on 20 July 2017. Please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 24 April 2017, 15 May 2017, 29 May 2017,
9 June 2017, 16 June 2017, 30 June 2017 and 20 July 2017 and
the composite document jointly issued by the Company and the
Offeror dated 9 June 2017 for further details.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN RELATION

TO SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES UNDER
SPECIFIC MANDATE

Simultaneously with the entering into of the Share Purchase
Agreement, the Company and the Offeror entered into a
subscription agreement (as amended by a side letter dated 23
April 2017 and a second side letter dated 16 June 2017) (the
“Subscription Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company
had conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and the Offeror had
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, 390,000,000 shares at the
consideration of HK$31,980,000, being HK$0.082 per share (the
“Subscription”).

The resolution proposed at the EGM held on 14 July 2017
regarding the Subscription and the granting of the specific
mandate was duly passed by the independent Shareholders by
way of poll at the EGM held on 14 July 2017. On 19 July 2017,
390,000,000 subscription shares were allotted and issued to the
Offeror at the subscription price of HK$0.082 per subscription
share, pursuant to the completion of the Subscription Agreement
upon the fulfilment of all terms and conditions thereto. Please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 24 April 2017, 15 May
2017, 29 May 2017, 9 June 2017, 16 June 2017, 14 July 2017 and 19
July 2017 and the Company'’s circular dated 23 June 2017 for further
details.
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The Directors consider that the Group will be benefited from the
Subscription in the following manner:

(i) strengthening of business synergy between the subscriber
and the Group; and

(ii) enlarging the capital base and enhancing the working

capital position of the Group.

A description of the connected relationship between the parties
to the transaction is disclosed in the section headed “INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION” and "“INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY".

The total net proceeds of the Subscription were approximately
HK$32 million. The net proceeds for general working capital
were intended mainly as to (i) approximately HK$14.0 million
for staff costs including salaries and other benefits of staff and
Directors; (i) approximately HK$2.5 million for rental expenses
for office premises; (iii) approximately HK$4.5 million for legal and
professional fees including fees to auditors and consultants; (iv)
approximately HK$8.0 million for the business development of the
Group's lottery business in the PRC; and (v) approximately HK$2.5
million for other administrative and operating expenses which
include overseas travelling expenses, printing and other office
expenses.

As at 31 December 2017, regarding the total net proceeds of the
Subscription; (i) approximately HK$4.2 million was utilized for staff
costs including salaries and other benefits of staff and Directors;
(i) approximately HK$1.3 million was utilized for rental expenses
for office premises; (iii) approximately HK$3.5 million was utilized
for legal and professional fees including fees to auditors and
consultants; (iv) approximately HK$2.5 million was utilized for
other administrative and operating expenses which include
overseas travelling expenses, printing and other office expenses;
and (v) save for the HK$8.0 million originally intended for the
development of the PRC lottery business, the remaining balance
of net proceeds of the Subscription will be used as intended.
After re-reviewing the performance of the Group’s overall lottery
business, the Directors believe that the other main businesses
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of the Group would generate a greater revenue than lottery
business. Therefore, the amount of approximately HK$8.0 million
from the Subscription that was originally intended to be used for
the development of the Group’s China Lottery business will be
preferentially utilized in other businesses of the Group, with a
view to improve the financial position of the Group.

Save for disclosed above and the Share Option Scheme (as
defined below) as disclosed in the below section headed “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME", no equity-linked agreements were entered into
by the Group, or existed during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the purchases and sales percentage from the
major customers and suppliers of the Group is set out below:

Sales
HE
— the largest customer
-BEREP
— the five largest customers combined
-RARF (Aa6)

(1

Purchases
g
— the largest supplier
- RAMER
- the five largest supplier combined

- ARHER (&6)

)

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors or any
of their close associates, or any Shareholders (which, to the
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company's
issued shares) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and suppliers for the year.
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Percentage
of total sales
L EHRET DL

8%
29%

Percentage
of total purchases
HERBETERS

33%

62%
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MR AEEHERNASEDATEFREREE
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS.

Mr. Sun Haitao (Chairman) (appointed on 17 August 2017)
Mr. Zhao Ke (appointed on 17 August 2017)

Mr. Leung Ngai Man (resigned on 17 August 2017)

Ms. Wu Wei Hua (resigned on 17 August 2017)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Song Ke (appointed on 31 August 2017)

Mr. Wu Bo (appointed on 31 August 2017)

Mr. Michael Yu Tat Chi (appointed on 31 August 2017)

Mr. Cai Wei Lun (resigned on 31 August 2017)

Mr. Qi Ji (resigned on 31 August 2017)

Ms. Xuan Hong (resigned on 31 August 2017)

Mr. Leung Ngai Man, Ms. Wu Wei Wa, Mr. Cai Wei Lun, Mr. Qi
Ji and Ms. Xuan Hong resigned on 17 and 31 August 2017,
respectively. They have confirmed that they had no disagreement
with the Board and that there were no matters in relation to their
resignation that needed to be brought to the attention of the
Shareholders.

In accordance with article 86(3) of the Articles, all of the Directors
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
as Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the "AGM").

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on page 11 to 12
of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

BEE
ENREEAREAMECZEFHOT :
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40 4 (BR201798 A31H BHT)
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which any of the Company’s subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at any time during the year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required
standard of dealings in securities by directors of listed issuer
as referred to in rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the
"Required Standard of Dealings”), were as follows:
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LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES

Name of Director

Number of Shares

RERGBZ2HER

Capacity and
nature of interests

Approximate
percentage of
issued share capital

HEe#TRAG
EEHR RHEE BEHORESMERR ZHABE DL
Mr. Sun Haitao (“Mr. Sun”) 1,834,963,213M Interest in controlled 39.64%

#wEs (TREED

Note:

(1

51RENPIN.COM INC. is wholly-owned by EEEFHERFTERAQ A
(transliterated as Shanghai Wuniu Network Technology Company Limited)
(“Shanghai Wuniu"), which is in turn wholly-owned by #T /M B 4 48 48 1
BIRATF (transliterated as Hangzhou Enniu Network Technology Co., Ltd.)
("Hangzhou Enniu”). Mr. Sun is indirectly interested in approximately 26.55%
of the equity interest in Hangzhou Enniu. Further, contractual arrangements
are entered into between MMNRA-{E B RHXBBR 2 7] (transliterated Hangzhou
Zhenniu Information Technology Co., Ltd.) (a company wholly-owned by
51 Credit Card (China) Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by 51 Credit
Card Inc., and ultimately controlled by Mr. Sun) (“Hangzhou Zhenniu") and
Hangzhou Enniu so that Hangzhou Zhenniu can control Hangzhou Enniu. By
virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sun is deemed to be interested in those shares held by
5TRENPIN.COM INC.

(The English names have been transliterated from their respective Chinese
names and are for identification only)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Required Standard of Dealings.

corporation
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, so far as was known to the Directors,
the persons or entities, other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company, who had or deemed to have an interest or a short
position in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2

FERRREAQFAWKRAD - HERKRD
REZTHEENEZERXR

2017412 H318 - REEMA - LW TATHER
(RRRIESFLERTBABRIN R&RMD - 18-
BOREBEHFTHEESIERAKEREZLSRIE
1&BIE3BIEMTERLRAARRRABGFE 2 ELM 2 #
HIKE  AIRBEBESF LB GO EXVIHE2RE
3R EARARRIFEE 2 ERIOAR -

and 3 of Part XV of the SFO are as follows:

Capacity and

Number of Shares
directly or indirectly

Approximate
percentage of

Name Nature of interest held and category® issued share capital
BEESBEFEN HEBRTRS
=x BORERZME RO E RERI ZBA A D
51 Credit Card Inc.™ Interest in controlled corporation 1,834,963,213 (L) 39.64%
SMERREBR AR REZESEE 2
51 Credit Card (China) Interest in controlled corporation 1,834,963,213 (L) 39.64%
Limited™ MREEHEE R
S1ER R (RE)BRAFO
Hangzhou Zhenniu® Interest in controlled corporation 1,834,963,213 (L) 39.64%
BN AR O REEHEE 2 R
Hangzhou Enniu®™ Interest in controlled corporation 1,834,963,213 (L) 39.64%
M B A0 MNEEHEE 2 R
Shanghai Wuniu® Interest in controlled corporation 1,834,963,213 (L) 39.64%
EiBIE4O R EGEE 2 s
51RENPIN.COM INC.™ Beneficial owner 1,834,963,213 (L) 39.64%
ERMEBA
Tiantu International®@ Beneficial owner 365,000,000 (L) 7.88%
X Bl B @ EREEAA
Mr. Wang Yonghua @ Person having a security
(“Mr. Wang") interest in shares 1,834,963,213 (L) 39.64%
FRERE(TELRE]? HERMDBEERBEROA
Interest in controlled corporation 365,000,000 (L) 7.88%
MNEEHEE 2 R
2,199,963,213 (L) 47.52%
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Notes:

(1) Duplicate with those disclosed in the section “Interests and short positions of
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation” above.

2) Mr. Wang is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 2,199,963,213 Shares,
of which 1,834,963,213 Shares are held by 51RENPIN.COM INC. and charged in
favour of Mr. Wang, and 365,000,000 Shares are held by Tiantu International, a
company wholly-owned by FIJIITTX Bl 1% & B 5 B R A 7 (Tian Tu Capital
Co., Ltd)*, which is owned as to approximately 59.80% by Mr. Wang.

) (L) — Long Position, (S) — Short Position.

* (The English names have been transliterated from their respective Chinese
names and are for identification only)

Save as disclosed above, so far as was known to the Directors, as
at 31 December 2017, there was no person (not being a Director
or a chief executive of the Company) who had or deemed to have
an interest or a short position in the shares which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO, which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections “CONNECTED AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS" and “SHARE OPTION SCHEME" in this
report, at no time during the year and at the end of the year
was the Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 29 June
2007 to replace its previous share option scheme adopted on 19
February 2001 (“Share Option Scheme”) and refreshed its 10%
general limit on the grant of share options on 9 April 2009, 20 April
2010 and 5 May 2014, respectively. The exercise price shall be the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant share options; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the relevant share options; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares. The principal purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate and give incentive to
the eligible participants as defined in the Share Option Scheme for
their contributions to the Group. The Share Option Scheme had a
term of 10 years and expired in June 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017, detailed movements & Z2017F12A31HILFEE © B BEEERIRETZ

relating to options granted under the Share Option Scheme were RHEREZ EFFBWOT -
as follows:

Movements of share options (adjusted) during the year
ERRRE(ERR) 29

Closing price
of Shares
immediately
Name or Share Asat Lapsed/ Asat hefore the
category of Option 1 January Cancelled/ 31 December Exercise date of grant
participant type 2017 Granted Exercised Forfeited 2017 Date of grant price  Exercise period of options
ZERLE
R20178 g/ R2017% RERDA
SREHZAEN BRERR 1B1A ERH B BAN/BREK 128318 REAH ﬁﬁ% TES MZ%%
HK HK
BT B
Director
gz
Ms. Wu Wai Hug* 2008 2,000,000¢ - - 2,000,000¢ - 10 July 2008 1328% 10 July 2008-29 June 2017 0.258
REELL 2008E 20087R108 200857 A10REN17F6A 298
2014(c) 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000 - 10 July 2014 0.280 10 July 2014-29 June 2017 0.270
0145(0) 014%7R108 N1ETRI0BENT7F6A2E
Sub-total 22,000,000¢ - - 22,000,000% -
/J\E-f
Other Participants ~ 2007(q) 9,600,000¢ - - 9,600,000% - 9luly 2007 1425% 9 July 2007-29 June 2017 0.248
SR 2007%(a) 007£7R9A 007E7A9RENTF6A29H
2007(0) 8,200,000% - - 8,200,000¢ - 22 August 2007 2030 22 August 2007-29 June 2017 0.364
A07%(0) 0758A22A8 N07E8A2AZENTF6A2E
2008 7,200,000% - - 7,200,000% - 10 July 2008 1328% 10 July 2008-29 June 2017 0.258
2A08E 2008E7A 108 2008E7A10RE017F6A29H
2013 16,000,000 - 16,000,000 - - 100ctober 2013 0.087 10 October 2013-29 June 2017 0.086
013F 20135107108 013F10A108E017F6A29H
2014(a) 32,000,000 - - 32,000,000 - 25March 2014 0.364 25 March 2014-29 June 2017 0.360
0145 (3) 014E3A25A NEIRBAZNTF6A2E
2014(0) 2,700,000 - - 2,700,000 - 2March 2014 0.365 26 March 2014-29 June 2017 0.345
0145 (D) 014E3A26A N1E3RWAZENTF6A2E
2015(a) 66,000,000 - - 66,000,000 - 27 May 2015 0290 27 May 2015-29 June 2017 0.220
W15%() 015558278 015858270 E017F6A 298
2015(0) 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 - 4ne 2015 0270 41une 2015-29 June 2017 0.236
20158 (b) 1556547 01556IRENTF6A 2R
2016 100,000,000 - 100,000,000 - - 6May 2016 0.105 6 May 2016-29 June 2017 0.107
165 W16%5A6AR M16E5A6AEN17F6A 2R
Sub-total 251,700,000 - 116,000,000  135,700,000% -
/j\'ﬁ-
Total 273,700,000 - 116,000,000 157,700,000 -
st
Weighted average
exercise price HKS$0.3453% 7+ - HKS0.1025% 7T HKS$0.5239:% 7 -
NETHIEE
Notes: BT
* The number of share options granted and the exercise price of the share  * B ERES E R ERETEER2012FK M0 A L
options was adjusted as a result of the 2012 Share Consolidation. HE
# Resigned on 17 August 2017. # 2017F8 A17 B BHE ©

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no share options were & £2017F 128318 L FE - A QAR ER L E
granted by the Company. A total of 16,000,000 and 100,000,000  f{a] B& B #E - 1R IR BE B A 51 2% H 2 & $£16,000,000
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme were 15 100,000,000 15 B R4 E 9 B3z & I A% 150.087
exercised at HK$0.087 and HK$0.105 per Share, respectively. All of T K0 1058 0T - FiA & NERELE R
the remaining share options lapsed in June 2017. 2017F6 A 5k -
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CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

During the year, the Group did not enter into any contract
of significance with its controlling Shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries.

During the year, no contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Group by a controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries was made.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The connected transaction as disclosed in the section headed
“"EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS" constituted connected transaction
and relevant disclosures had been made by the Company in
accordance with chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

A description of the connected relationship between the parties
to the transaction is disclosed in the section headed “INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION” and "“INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY”.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS
During the year under review, none of the Directors or controlling
Shareholders or any of their respective close associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) has any interest in a business
which causes or may cause any significant competition with the
business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued shares was at all times held by the public
during the year and up to the date of this report. The Company
has maintained a sufficient public float in compliance with Rule
11.23(7) of the GEM Listing Rules.
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STRUCTURED CONTRACTS

Pursuant to the Catalogue of Industries for Guiding Foreign
Investment (2017 revision), value-added telecommunications
services are subject to foreign investment restriction in which a
foreign investor shall hold no more than 50% equity interest in
a value-added telecommunications services provider (excluding
e-commerce) in the PRC.

The Internet Content Provider (“ICP") services belong to a
sub-category of value-added telecommunications services.
According to the Provisions on the Administration of
Foreign-funded Telecommunications Enterprises, foreign investors
shall contribute to no more than 50% of the registered capital of
a value-added telecommunications services provider (excluding
e-commerce) and any such foreign investor shall maintain a good
track record and possess relevant operational experience in the
value-added telecommunications services industry (the “Foreign
Shareholding Restrictions”).

Hangzhou Hongmai Information Technology Limited (47 M j54 A%
= BRI AR AR (formerly known as Shenzhen Hongmai
Information Limited CFYIZE MK = ERBHE AR 2 7)) (“Hangzhou
Hongmai”) is an indirect wholly-owned PRC subsidiary of the
Ccompany.

Hangzhou Weizi Assets Management Limited (F M54 & & & 12
BBRA7F]) ("Hangzhou Weizi") was incorporated in September
2017. It is currently wholly-owned by Mr. Wang Yongjun.
Hangzhou Weizi obtained the ICP license in late 2017.

As company directly held by foreign shareholders is not allowed to
engage in the Internet business which Hangzhou Weizi engages in,
the Contractual Arrangements (as defined below) are adopted by
the Group (as discussed below). The mobile application “Xiaowu
Purse” developed and owned by Hangzhou Weizi (“Xiaowu
Purse App”) acts as the major channel through which Hangzhou
Hongmai approaches users and conducts business. Hangzhou
Weizi presents information to specific users by connecting Xiaowu
Purse App to its cooperating Internet platforms, thereby providing
the potential users with financing intentions to Hangzhou
Hongmai. At the same time, Hangzhou Hongmai gets access
to users application information through Xiaowu Purse App.
Therefore, the Contractual Arrangements (as defined below) are
crucial to the Group.
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Hangzhou Hongmai entered into: (1) the Exclusive Business
Cooperation Agreement with Hangzhou Weizi in late 2017; and
further entered into: (2) the Exclusive Option Agreement; (3) the
Equity Pledge Agreement; and (4) the Shareholder Voting Rights
Entrustment Agreement and supporting documents (collectively
referred to as “Structured Contracts”) with Hangzhou Weizi and
Mr. Wang Yongjun (the “Nominee Shareholder”) to enable the
Group to obtain the power and ability to control the business of
Hangzhou Weizi and acquire economic benefits (“Contractual
Arrangements”).

The Structured Contracts have an initial term of 10 years
commencing from the date of the relevant agreements which
is renewable by prior written notice of Hangzhou Hongmai. As
security for the payment of service fees under the Exclusive
Business Cooperation Agreement and the performance of the
Exclusive Option Agreement, the Equity Pledge Agreement
executed in favour of Hangzhou Hongmai as pledgee will only
be terminated when all the said obligations of the Nominee
Shareholder contemplated under the Contractual Arrangements
are fulfilled. Similarly, for protection of the Group, the power of
attorney executed in favour of Hangzhou Hongmai as pledgee will
be valid so long as the Contractual Arrangements are in place. The
Company will keep exploring various opportunities in building up
its ICP services operations for the purposes of being qualified as
early as possible, to acquire the entire equity interest of Hangzhou
Weizi if and when the Foreign Shareholding Restrictions are lifted.

Save for the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement which
involves the payment of a service fee by Hangzhou Weizi to
Hangzhou Hongmai, and the nominal purchase consideration
to be paid by Hangzhou Hongmai to the Nominee Shareholder
under the Exclusive Option Agreement, each of the Contractual
Arrangements does not involve payment of any consideration.

The Structured Contracts, taken as a whole, permit the results
and financial operations of Hangzhou Weizi to be consolidated
into the Group, as if it was the Company’s subsidiary resulting
in all economic benefits of its business flowing to the Company.
Through the appointment of senior management of Hangzhou
Weizi, the Directors believe that Hangzhou Hongmai is able
to effectively supervise, manage and operate the business
operations, expansion plans, financial policies and assets
of Hangzhou Weizi, and at the same time, ensure due
implementation of the Structured Contracts.
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The Structured Contracts enable the Company to exercise
control over and receive economic benefits generated from the
business operation of Hangzhou Weizi. The Directors confirm
that the Structured Contracts are legal and valid. The validity and
legality of the Structured Contracts have also been confirmed
by the PRC legal advisor. The Directors are of the view that it
is fair and reasonable for Hangzhou Hongmai to be entitled
to all the economic benefits generated from Hangzhou Weizi.
The Structured Contracts also permit Hangzhou Hongmai to
exclusively acquire all or part of the equity interest in Hangzhou
Weizi, if and when permitted by the PRC laws and regulations.
Notwithstanding the Group’s lack of equity ownership in Hangzhou
Weizi, the Group is able to control the business and financial
position of Hangzhou Weizi in substance through the Structured
Contracts. As a result of the Contractual Arrangements, Hangzhou
Weizi is accounted for as the Company's subsidiary, and its
financial position and operating results being consolidated into the
Company'’s consolidated financial statements.

The net loss for the year ended 31 December 2017 and net
assets of Hangzhou Weizi as at 31 December 2017, subject to the
Contractual Arrangements, amounted to approximately HK$4.8
million and approximately HK$13.6 million, respectively. No
revenue was generated for the year ended 31 December 2017
from Hangzhou Weizi.

MANNER OF SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES
WHICH MAY ARISE FROM THE CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS

Pursuant to the Structured Contracts, any dispute arising from
the interpretation and performance of the Structured Contracts
between the parties thereto should first be resolved through
negotiation, failing which any party may submit the said dispute
to the China International Economic and Trade Arbitration
commission with a view to resolving the dispute in accordance
with the then prevailing arbitration rules.

ARRANGEMENTS IN THE EVENT OF DEATH,
DISABILITY, BANKRUPTCY OR DIVORCE OF THE
NOMINEE SHAREHOLDER

The Nominee Shareholder has undertaken in the Exclusive Option
Agreement and the Equity Pledge Agreement that, in the event
of death, disability, bankruptcy, divorce (or other circumstances
affecting his equity interests in Hangzhou Weizi) of himself, there
would be no adverse effect or obstacle in enforcing the Exclusive
Option Agreement and the Equity Pledge Agreement by his
SUCCessors.
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UNDERTAKING TO MITIGATE ANY POTENTIAL
CONFLICT OF INTERESTS WITH THE NOMINEE
SHAREHOLDER

The Nominee Shareholder may have potential conflicts with
Hangzhou Hongmai and the Company. To mitigate any potential
conflict of interests, the Nominee Shareholder and Hangzhou
Weizi have undertaken in the Exclusive Option Agreement that,
during the period the Exclusive Option Agreement remains
effective, unless otherwise agreed by Hangzhou Hongmai, the
Nominee Shareholder: (1) would not sign any document which
may have conflict of interests with the legal documents, including
the agreements that are entered into and performing by Hanghzou
Weizi, Hangzhou Hongmai and their designated persons, or make
relevant undertakings, and (2) would not cause any conflict of
interests between Nominee Shareholder and Hangzhou Hongmai
and its shareholders.

RISK FACTORS

The following are the major risks relating to the Contractual
Arrangements: (1) the PRC Government may determine that the
documents for the Contractual Arrangements do not comply with
applicable regulations; (2) the Contractual Arrangements may
not provide control as effective as direct ownership; and (3) the
Contractual Arrangements may be subject to scrutiny of the PRC
tax authorities and additional tax may be imposed.

The Group has consulted the PRC legal advisor specified in this
area for provision of professional legal opinion. As advised by the
PRC legal advisor, the Contractual Arrangements were narrowly
tailored to minimize the potential conflict with relevant PRC laws
and regulations.

INTERNAL CONTROL MEASURES

In order to effectively control and safeguard the assets of
Hangzhou Weizi, the Contractual Arrangements have provided,
without having obtained the written consent of Hangzhou
Hongmai, the Nominee Shareholder and Hangzhou Weizi: (1) shall
not sell, transfer, mortgage or otherwise dispose of in any manner
any legal assets, legitimate interest or revenue interests of the
equity interests in Hangzhou Weizi, or allow any encumbrance
thereon of any guarantee interest; and (2) shall not enter into any
merger, partnership, joint venture agreement or be in association
with any person, or acquire or invest in any person, or separate
Hangzhou Weizi, amend the articles of association of Hangzhou
Weizi and change registered capital or legal form of the company.
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NO MATERIAL CHANGE IN THE CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS

The Board confirmed that there is no material change in the
Contractual Arrangements and/or the circumstances under which
they were adopted, and their impact on the Group, and the terms
of the Contractual Arrangements are on normal commercial
terms.

NO UNWINDING OF THE CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS

The Board also confirmed that there is no unwinding of the
Structured Contracts or failure to unwind when the restrictions
that led to the adopted Structured Contracts are removed.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 24 January 2018, the Company received a conversion notice
from Mr. Leung to exercise the conversion rights attached to
the outstanding convertible bond in the principal amount of
HK$50,000,000. 41,666,666 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 0.9% of the issued shares of the Company as
at 24 January 2018 and approximately 0.89% of the enlarged
issued shares of the Company immediately after the conversion,
were alloted and issued to Mr. Leung on 26 January 2018 at the
conversion price of HK$1.2 per share.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report detailed corporate governance is set out on pages 33 to
46 in this report.

AUDITORS

A resolution for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as the auditors of the Company for the subsequent year is
to be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board
China Netcom Technology Holdings Limited
Sun Haitao

Chairman and Executive Director

20 March 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance in order to uphold the transparency of the
Group and safeguard interests of the Shareholders.

During the financial year under review, the Company complied
with all the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “"CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules except for the following:

CODE PROVISION A.2.1

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the role of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

Currently, the role of the chairman of the Board is performed
by Mr. Sun. Mr. Sun has been engaging in Internet business
development and financial technology for years. The Board
believes that by virtue of the practical experience of Mr. Sun
in mobile Internet and financial technology, Mr. Sun is able to
provide the Company with strong and consistent leadership,
facilitates effective and efficient planning, implementation of
business decisions and strategies, and ensures the generation of
benefits to the Shareholders.

Although the appointment of the chief executive officer of the
Company remains outstanding, the overall management of the
Company was performed by Mr. Sun and Mr. Zhao Ke, their
respective areas of profession spearheaded the Group's overall
development and business strategies.

The Company is still looking for a suitable candidate to fill the
vacancy of the chief executive officer in order to comply with the
CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities
transactions by Directors (the “Code”) which is on terms no less
exacting than the required standard against which issuers and
their directors must measure their conduit regarding transactions
in securities of their issuers (the “Required Standard of
Dealings”) under GEM Listing Rules 5.48 to 5.67. The Company
made specific enquiry with all Directors and has not been notified
of any non-compliance with the Required Standard of Dealings
and the Code by the Directors during the year.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEETINGS

The Board comprises the following Directors during the year and
up to the date of this report:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Sun Haitao (Chairman) (appointed on 17 August 2017)
Mr. Zhao Ke (appointed on 17 August 2017)

Mr. Leung Ngai Man (resigned on 17 August 2017)

Ms. Wu Wei Hua (resigned on 17 August 2017)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Song Ke (appointed on 31 August 2017)

Mr. Wu Bo (appointed on 31 August 2017)

Mr. Michael Yu Tat Chi (appointed on 31 August 2017)

Mr. Cai Wei Lun (resigned on 31 August 2017)

Mr. Qi Ji (resigned on 31 August 2017)

Ms. Xuan Hong (resigned on 31 August 2017)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under the
section headed "BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT" of this report.

The Board meets regularly (at least four times a year at quarterly
intervals) for reviewing and approving the financial and operating
performance, considering and approving the overall strategies and
policies of the Company. Additional meetings are convened as
and when the Board considers necessary. The Directors attended
those meetings in person, by phone or through other electronic
means of communication. The attendance record of the Directors
in 2017 is set out below:
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RS
Attendance/Number of meetings entitled to attend
HERB/ERLEEEYUE
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee = Committee  Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting General
=8 EREES FMzES REZEE Meeting

Name of Directors EZ %7 e L S 2% BRERE
Executive Directors:
HiTEE
Mr. Sun Haitao 172 - 0/ - -
RERLE
Mr. Zhao Ke 2/2 - - - -
BEEE
Mr. Leung Ngai Man* 12/12 - 2/2 2/2 2/2
RR
Ms. Wu Wei Hua* 12/12 - - - 2/2
REERL*
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BUHHTEE
Mr. Song Ke N 1M 2/2 - -
RAEE
Mr. Wu Bo N M 2/2 - -
REFE
Mr. Michael Yu Tat Chi 171 7 2/2 - -
RESLE
Mr. Cai Wei LunA 12/12 3/3 2/2 2/2 2/2
BERELEN
Mr. Qi Jin 12/12 3/3 2/2 2/2 2/2
B 4D e A
Ms. Xuan HongA 12/12 3/3 2/2 2/2 2/2
AT A
* resigned on 17 August 2017 * 201768 A17 B & E
A resigned on 31 August 2017 A M20174F8 A31H BT
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RESPONSIBILITY OF BOARD AND
DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTION
The Board has overall responsibility for the stewardship of the
Group, including the responsibilities for the adoption of long-term
strategies and appointing and supervising senior management
to ensure that the operation of the Group is conducted in
accordance with the objective of the Group. Execution of daily
operational matters is delegated to the management.

Currently, Mr. Song Ke, Mr. Wu Bo and Mr. Michael Yu Tat Chi are
the independent non-executive Directors (“INED”). All of them are
under a term of service of three years commencing from the date
of their respective appointment or the date of entering into their
respective service contract. All Directors, including the INEDs, are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting in accordance with the Articles, provided that the
appointment may be terminated by the Company or the Director
concerned with a written notice pursuant to their service contract.

Save as otherwise disclosed under the section headed
“BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT" of this report, there is no other relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships) among members of the Board. All of them are
free to exercise their independent judgement during the year.
The Company has received annual written confirmations from
the INEDs in respect of their independence pursuant to the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers the INEDs to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in the GEM Listing Rules.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF THE DIRECTORS

In order to comply with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG
Code, the Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. Each member of the Board received training on
corporate governance, regulatory developments or other relevant
topics during the year ended 31 December 2017, and the Directors
are continually updated on developments in the statutory and
regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the
discharge of their responsibilities.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The role of the chief executive is currently taken up by Mr. Sun
and the executive Director. The roles of the chairman of the Board
and the chief executive are not separate and exercised by Mr. Sun
and the executive Director. For further details, please refer to the
section headed “Code Provision A.2.1" of this report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee (collectively,
the “Board Committees”) in order to maintain high level of
corporate governance standard of the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprised four members and a
majority of the members are INEDS. The committee is chaired by
Mr. Sun, the chairman of the Board and executive Director, with
Mr. Song Ke, Mr. Wu Bo and Mr. Michael Yu Tat Chi as members.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually;
identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board, to assess the independence of the INEDs and make
recommendation to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or reappointment of Directors.

Summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the year:

- reviewed the structure, size and composition and diversity of
the Board, and the board diversity policy;

- reviewed the nomination procedures for directorship during
the year,

- assessed the independence of the INEDSs.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2017. Individual attendance records of each
member of the Nomination Committee were set out in the table
on page 35 of this report.
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Board Diversity Policy
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
and measurable objectives which are set for the purpose of
implementing the Policy.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognised and embraced the benefits of having
a diverse Board to the quality of its performance. The Policy
aimed to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
In designing the Board’s composition, board diversity has been
considered from a number of measurable aspects including skills,
experience, knowledge, expertise, culture, independence, age
and gender. All Board appointments will be based on merit while
taking into account diversity (including gender diversity).

Measurable Objectives

The measurable objectives for the purpose of implementation of
the Policy including the independence, educational background,
professional qualifications and years of experience in the industry
he/she is specialised in.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the Policy to ensure
its effectiveness and resolved that the diversity in the Board
composition was in the interest of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprised four members and a
majority of the members are INEDs. The committee is chaired by
Mr. Song Ke, with Mr. Sun, executive Director and the chairman of
the Board, Mr. Wu Bo and Mr. Michael Yu Tat Chi as members.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration; make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management, which include benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment; consider
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group.
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Summary of the work performed by the Remuneration Committee
during the year:

- discussed the remuneration of the Directors;

- approved the terms of executive Directors’ services
contracts,

- approved the terms of INEDS' letters of appointment;

- made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and INEDs.

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2017. Individual attendance records of each
member of the Remuneration Committee are set out in the table
on page 35 of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The Audit Committee comprised three members and all members
are INEDs. The committee is chaired by Mr. Michael Yu Tat Chi,
with Mr. Song Ke and Mr. Wu Bo as members.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors and assessing their independence and
performance; review the Group’s financial information and
compliance; and review the Group’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems and their
effectiveness.

Summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee during
the year:

- reviewed the audited financial statement for the year ended
31 December 2016;

- reviewed the financial statements for the three months, six
months and nine months ended 31 March, 30 June and 30

September 2017, respectively,

- reviewed the risk management and internal control system.
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The Audit Committee held a total of four meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2017. Individual attendance records of each
member of the Audit Committee are set out in the table on page
35 of this report.

The Board Committees have adopted specific terms of reference
clearly defining their respective powers and responsibilities.
These committees are required by their terms of reference to
report to the Board in relation to their decisions, findings or
recommendations, and in certain specific situations, to seek the
Board'’s approval before taking any actions. The Board reviews, on
a yearly basis, all delegations by the Board to each of the Board
Committees to ensure that such delegations are appropriate and
continue to be beneficial to the Group as a whole.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration
payable to the external auditors in respect of the audit and
non-audit services are as follows:

RBE2017F12ANBILFE - EREE /BT
MR&e% BRZBESRKEZEALFLREET

MAREFEBAZRENA -

EXZE2CRNBFERDEER N NBE ZEER

EEHE - BERERTZERESRERTE - &
SEBERAEFTERE  XESTHEBRT

ERBRERTHMSREETE2HE - EFTEEF
R EFEMTRBGCMAERE  UBRZFR
BAAEYTHEHAREEBAMES

I E =2

BEET &
BE20177F12A3NB ILFE - siASEEINEZEED
REFEZEZBRIFRBURE RN ZEEM 2SN T

Type of services Amount
REER &8
(HK$'000)
(FHET)
Audit services BT 1,500
Non-audit services SEEET RS 900
DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS' BEERZEE AT
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
All Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the FIABEZEEHERBEESHFEREE20177F12A3181LF

accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 which give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group. The Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The statement of the
auditors of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in the section “INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS' REPORT" of this report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Risks arise during the Group'’s pursuance of its long-term strategy
and it is the Board's responsibility to evaluate and determine the
nature and extent of risks that it is willing to take. The Board is
also responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group including the task of reviewing such systems
and ensuring their effectiveness. The Audit Committee assists the
Board in carrying out its responsibilities and is also responsible for
reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
audit function.

The Group adopts the “three lines of defence” framework
for effective risk management and follows the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO) Internal Control — Integrated Framework for the design,
implementation and review of internal controls.

The First Line of Defence - Daily Operation

The first line of defence is represented by all functional
departments responsible for the day-to-day operation and
management of the Group. They are the risk owners that
constantly encounter risks during their operation and mitigate
them by following the Group’s policies and procedures. Risk
owners are also responsible for designing and implementing
internal controls related to their risks.

The Second Line of Defence - Risk Monitoring
The second line of defence is mainly represented by the internal
control team of the Group which takes up the role of risk
management and monitoring. They holistically assess and identify
the risks of the Group and evaluate the impact, formulate policies
and procedures to mitigate those risks, and are also responsible
for supervising the first line of defence in the improvement of
internal controls.
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The Third Line of Defence - Independent
Assurance

The third line of defence is represented by the Group’s internal
audit team which performs regular internal audit. The internal
audit team is highly independent and reports to both the Board
and the Audit Committee directly. The primary task is to perform
independent evaluation on the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems.

Outside the organization’s structure, the external auditors and
other regulatory bodies supplement the three lines of defence to
further strengthen the Group’s governance and controls.

During the year, the Group had carried out a preliminary risk
assessment to identify the risks of the Group for which the Board
considers to be significant. Below is a summary of the key risks
of the Group to date along with the applicable risk mitigation
responses.

1. Market Competition Risk

The Group’s businesses face fierce market competition,
especially for its financial technology services business
segment. China's financial technology services market is
a dynamically growing market that is highly competitive.
A relatively low barrier of entry allows many large and
small players to enter this market to complete. To ensure
continual growth, the Group must constantly remains
innovative, assess changing consumers’ needs and provide
in-demand services over its competitors. There is the risk
that the Group is unable to maintain its edge and lose
market share. The Group has mitigated this risk by carrying
out competitor analysis and benchmarking, and also by
monitoring the market behavior constantly to timely react
to market changes and disruption. Continuous devotion
to product innovation and marketing enables the Group to
expand its influence and suit the customers’ needs.
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2. Government Policies and Regulations Risk

The Group’s financial technology services and lottery
businesses belong to industries that are highly regulated
by the government of the Peoples Republic of China (the
“PRC"). Players in these industries have to adhere to strict
regulations. As these industries grow and the regulatory
landscape keeps on evolving, the PRC government often
promulgates new measures and restrictions which all
participants have to cope with. Unable to comply with these
rules and regulations will lead to serious consequences
including possibly the discontinuation of the businesses. To
mitigate this risk, the Group has maintained a strong team of
lawyers and compliance advisors to ensure full compliance
are in place. The Group also fosters close ties with the PRC
government and be vigilant to latest regulatory updates.

3. Information Security Risk

The Group’s financial technology services and lottery
businesses serve the mass consumers and hence collects
a lot of customers’ confidential information and sensitive
data. These data and information must be well secured
and protected from theft, leakage and damage. Failure to
do so will cause the Group to impair its reputation, lose
businesses and even be prosecuted. The Group places a
strong emphasis on information security and has a team
of information security experts. A series of measures are
implemented to ensure customers’ data is secured, including
regular testing of the Group’s data system to eliminate any
breaching loopholes, content segregation for sensitive data
and access authorization controls.

The Group's system of internal control includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority, and standardized
workflow procedures designed to help the Group achieve its
business objectives, protect its assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use
or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations.
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The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are, however, designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

With respect to the handling and dissemination of inside
information, the Company has formulated its guidelines, with
an aim to ensure that the insiders abide by the confidentiality
requirement and fulfill the disclosure obligation of the inside
information.

The Board performs an annual review to assess the adequacy and
effectiveness of its risk management and internal control systems.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was a change in
Board members and controlling shareholder of the Company. A
new risk management and internal control systems as described
above have been set up by the Board to align with the Group’s
new businesses and future development. The Board considers
such new systems to be adequate but its effectiveness can only
be assessed upon further review in 2018.

The Board’s annual review for the year ended 31 December
2017 also assessed the adequacy of the Group's resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
For this aspect, the Board is satisfactory. The Board is also not
aware of any material internal control failings or weaknesses.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Li Hiu Ling is the Company Secretary of the Company. She is a
full-time employee of the Group, has day-to-day knowledge of the
Company’s affairs and has complied with the relevant professional
training requirements under Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR THE SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

Pursuant to the article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR THE SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
THEIR ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
Shareholders. The Company delivers quarterly, interim and annual
reports and publication of the quarterly, interim and annual results
announcements and other required disclosure of information on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company to all the
Shareholders.
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The Company endeavours to maintain two way communications
with the Shareholders through various channels. The Shareholders
are encouraged to put their enquiries about the Group through
the Company’s email at investorrelations@chinanetcomtech.com
or by mail to the address of the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Unit 1006, 10th Floor, Tower One, Lippo
Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong Kong. All the enquiries will be dealt
with in a timely manner.

The Shareholders are also encouraged to attend AGM and
EGM and to put their enquiries to the Board directly. Notices
are duly circulated to the Shareholders in order to ensure
each Shareholder is informed to attend AGM and EGM. The
Shareholders’ enquiries will be responded in a prompt manner at
the aforesaid meetings. Pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules, voting
by poll is mandatory at all general meetings.

The detailed procedures for conducting a poll are set out in the
proxy forms and will be explained by the chairman of AGM and
EGM orally at the beginning of the aforesaid meetings. The poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company after the AGM and the EGM.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhancing investor relations. It is
committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to its Shareholders and investment public.

The Company regularly updates its Shareholders on its latest
business developments and financial performance through its
annual, interim and quarterly reports. The website of the Company
(www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinanetcom) provides an effective
communication platform to the public and the Shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there is no significant

change in the Company’'s memorandum and articles of
association.
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The management strives to be responsible and continues to
create value to stakeholders with sustainable growth through new
business development under agile strategies, stringent policies
and regulations. The Group continues to commit to sustainable
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") standards in all
of its operations. The Group integrates environmental and social
considerations into our business objectives to achieve:

Environmental objectives:

- act environmental friendly in our daily operations and
services;

- consume energy and resources wisely and efficiently;

- minimize gases emissions, water and wastes discharges;

Social objectives:

- respect employees’ rights and promote equitable working
environment;

- commit to work safety and healthy;

- commit to fair and ethical business practices; and

- support the weak and poor groups and the community.

The Board approves the ESG strategies, guides and polices, and
delegates the Executive Directors to oversee the ESG related
matters and issues, and execution to ensure conformity to
prevailing ESG standards. Operationally, an internal control and
specialized personnel that reports directly to the Board has been
assigned to monitor and to review the Group’s environmental and
social obligations performance on a regular basis. Independent
professionals and consultants have been engaged to perform
analysis and review on ESG related issues, in order to address
the weaknesses and problems, and to recommend changes and
improvements.
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(A) ENVIRONMENTAL

A1l.
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Since the production of our manufacturing operation is on
outsourcing and subcontracting basis, and other businesses
of the Group are management, research and services based
which operate under and through normal office environment
and do not involve directly in any manufacturing operation,
we therefore do not generate any hazardous and polluted
solid wastes, water discharges and/or air emissions from
our direct offices and operations. However, as a responsible
corporation that supports the “Green Global”, the Group has
implemented stringent policies and measures to ensure our
offices operation environment to be energy, water, paper
and other natural resources saving.

Emissions

The Group practices “green” and complies with the
environmental laws, rules and regulations in all of our offices
without producing any hazardous or polluted air emissions,
wastes and water discharges. We only produce greenhouse
gases indirectly through the use of electricity in our offices,
and an insignificant amount of general office wastes such
as used papers. Also, we always encourage staff to reduce
flights by teleconferencing, to use public transport and to
carpool so as to consume less energy and to produce less
greenhouse gas of CO,.

From the pre-determined KPI of “Emissions, Wastes and
Discharges Record”, the amount of indirect greenhouse gas
- CO, generated from the offices and operations in China,
the headquarter office and the table tennis training center
in Hong Kong in the year 2017 was 64,017.19, which was
41.9% more than 2016. The increase was reasonable as the
Group added a new office and operation in Hangzhou and
substantially increased its business sales turnover.

Same as the year 2016, the Group’s operation had no
records of penalty or warning related to the air, water and
wastes pollution and discharges from any environmental
department or alerts from any environmental agencies in
Hong Kong or China in the year 2017.
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A2. Use of Resources A2, BEFEEH

The consumption of electricity, personal use of water and
office stationeries including papers for drafting and printing
commensurate with the size of the Group’s operation, thus
should be regarded as normal and efficient. The Group has
constantly reminded the staff to save and to effectively
enforce our “Smart Usage of Electricity, Water and Paper
Rules” and the Group has not been involved in direct
production nor our goods sold requiring much packaging
materials, hence, the consumption of raw materials,
resources, and packaging materials have been insignificant.

From the pre-determined KPI of “Electricity and Water
Consumption Record”, due to rapid expansion of the
information technology based business, the electricity
consumed by the Group's China operation in the year
2017 was 2.15 times higher than that of 2016. Taking into
consideration of the multiple increase in sales turnover,
the Group has in fact achieved a much lower energy
consumption per unit of sales. Furthermore, in the case
excluding the in-door table tennis training center which
requires good lighting and air ventilation, the Hong Kong and
Shenzhen offices in the years 2016 and 2017 only consumed
27,421 kWh and 28,310 kWh of electricity respectively, which
shows that these two offices have done well in energy
saving.

Similarly, 2,377 CBM of household water was used in the
year 2017, which was 2.69 times or 1,496 CBM more than
2016, which again was reasonable given the fact that a new
office located in Hangzhou with 10 new employees has been
added, and moreover the business turnover and activities
has increased significantly.
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The Environment and Natural Resources

With the mission to operate on “green”, the Group has
implemented policies and rules to reduce energy and
natural resources consumption. We are also committed to
reduce the operation impacts on environment and natural
resources. Although the Group’s business activities do not
have an adverse impact on the environment and natural
resources, we have been striking to be a responsible
corporation, not just by consuming less. We advocate to
consume environmentally friendly and wisely. In selecting
outsourcing sub-contractors to manufacture the smart
wearable devices, we require them to manufacture ethically
and environmental friendly, which include: not to use
the mineral resources and raw materials from countries
forbidden by the United Nation on unhuman ground,
and toxic mineral resources and raw materials. Finally,
we encourage environmental education and advocate
our employees be environmental friendly which helps to
preserve the environment and natural resources.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Wworking towards a socially responsible corporation, the
Group commits to provide a safe, healthy and equitable
working environment, and endeavors to build a harmonious
relationship with our employees, customers, suppliers and
the local communities. We care about the welfare and
development of the employees, services and products
quality to our customers, and our commitments and
contributions to our community growth and development.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES

B1.

50

Employment

As an information technology based company, the Group
values our employees as the most important asset for
our development and growth, and commits to providing
equal opportunity to all staff on recruitment, promotion,
compensation and benefits, etc.; and promoting a
harmonious and equitable working environment. The Group
strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations
of the Labor Law of the PRC ({(Fh#E AR LB BB %)),
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282 of the
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Laws of Hong Kong) and has totally forbidden recruitment of
child labor and forced labor. The Group strives to strengthen
our corporate management with humanistic policies to
encourage motivation and innovation among employees,
effectively protecting the interests of the Group and the
legal rights of employees, and achieving a convergence
of interests of the Group and our employees. Through
the above, the development and growth of the Group and
employees individual value can be achieved.

Regarding employment, the Group adopts a hybrid of
external recruitment, internal nomination and job rotation to
recruit suitable personnel and provides more opportunities
to employees. All job vacancies and positions are open to
all with equal opportunities, under no discrimination on
race, religion, gender, age and disability basis, and selected
on skill and competency basis. Proper and standardized
written employment contracts are entered into between
the respective employees and the Group. Regional offices’
managers are delegated with the responsibility to ensure
that statutory obligations of the Group are fulfilled and
complied with in a timely manner.

In accordance with the requirements of the laws of the PRC
and the Hong Kong, where appropriate, the Group provides
and maintains statutory benefits to all qualified employees,
including but not limited to mandatory provident fund, social
security insurance, medical insurance, work injury insurance
and compensation and statutory holidays.

Employees’ remunerations are determined with reference
to the prevailing market level in line with their competency,
qualifications and experience. Bonus will be rewarded at
the discretion of the top management with consideration
on performance. Salary will be paid in cash directly to
employees’ bank accounts within the prescribed agreed
period at the end of the wage period. The Group has
honored all obligations including the payment of salaries and
wages, holidays and leaves, compensations, insurance and
health benefits without disputes with our employees in the
year 2017.

Comparing the Group’s pre-determined KPI of “Employee

Information Record” for the years 2016 and 2017, they
showed that:

i

) the Group had a stable and steady growth in the total
number of employees, from 38 to 42;
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(i) in line with the industry trend, the Group recruited
more younger staff to perform the Internet-based
technology works in 2017, 43.9% at below 30 and
87.6% at below 40 years of age, as compared to the
year 2016 at 31.6% at below 30 and 71.1% at below 40
years of age; and

(i) the Group maintained a stable gender mix of employees,
the male to female ratios were 63.2% : 36.8% and
65.9% : 34.1% for the years 2016 and 2017 respectively.

Health and Safety

The Group is committed to provide a healthy and safe
working environment in its offices and operation centers to
employees. The Employees’ Handbook and Labor Contract
for Chinese employees and Employment Contract for Hong
Kong employees set out detailed health and safety guidance
and measures, which comply with Employment Ordinance,
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance and labor laws and
regulations of the PRC, and employees are required to
strictly observe.

The Group has provided National Social Securities and
Insurance for all qualified employees in China and Mandatory
Provident Funds for employees in Hong Kong in accordance
with the statutory requirements of the two places.

The Group has equipped all our offices with all the required
safety equipment and facilities, and has passed the relevant
governmental safety inspections. In case of accidents,
regardless of minor or serious, employees are required by
the in-house rules to notify their superiors immediately and
without delays, who will then take appropriate measures
to ensure safety is not being compromised. In-house rules
require all injuries or accidents to be promptly and properly
dealt with and reported in accordance with the local or
national laws as appropriate. Measures are in place to
require corresponding remedial or compensatory actions
arising from safety and health issues or work injuries are
taken where necessary in accordance with the in-house and
national rules.

No claim disputes on compensation or work related injury
and fatalities investigation by the government agencies in
Hong Kong and in China during 2017.
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Development and Training

As the Group's works are technology based which demands
mastering of the latest art and technique of modern
information technology as well as high innovative ability,
the quality and professional skills of our employees are
important. The Group is therefore willing to invest on
employees training and development. The Group has
designed and offered specialized on-the-job training
programs to train new employees. The Group has also
encouraged employees to attend external trainings related
to their works in order to improve their skills and knowledge,
and allows reimbursement on the fees.

Labor Standards

To employ and to retain highly qualified and capable
employees, the Group has implemented a comprehensive
human resources policy in place regarding recruitment,
dismissal, promotion, leaves, holidays and benefits to
support our works on manpower resources. The Group
stringently complies with the PRC and Hong Kong labor laws
and employment regulations in the relevant jurisdictions
in which it operates, and adopts the respective national
standard as its minimum labor standard on labor protection
and welfare. The Group also maintains strict compliance
with the laws in relation to equal employment opportunities,
prevention of child or forced labor such as {Fr#E AR
MBI ARKF AREE)and(E LA ETHRE). We have
honoured all of our obligations towards the employees and
have built a safe, healthy and pleasant working environment
in all our offices. We had not violated any provisions
under the Labor Law of the PRC, Employment Ordinance
and Employees’ Compensation Ordinance, and no labor
infringement charges have been lodged against us in 2017.

JD¥F

B3.

B4.

PERBERERDR o 2017FF K

REHZ

HRAEEN TEARMAER  BRERE
BREMBUEORFIREN RS E A€
Nho BEMANEENEREREXRREERE
ZoRH AEERBEREERE R N
‘- ARBEE R REHRFEFERBZIIR
RABIFEE - AEETmEEE 2 ME
H T RSB AR = H £k Mo 3
K- WAFREEHEER -

HBTEE

RERAKBEBEREERENENEES K&
BECAERE fgE S BB KERE
FMEEGTZEANDERBRE  AZIERET
ANERIE - AEBBEBETHBEAREE
BITEGIA RSB EER 2 ER
&G WERMSH BRIZEERS TIRE
MEMZ &K TIZE - REBIMEE R
BTrTEBATERERE  IEET B
T 20ER - R A R M BR K G AR
FORCEIFERETRE) - RMEBITE R
EM—YER WEERMMENSELE
e RERETEN TIERE - R20174F -
KM EERFPECEE) - BEGD XE
B EGEOR MG TMEEEEMET
=HREIEIE -

53



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
0 ¥R

RIR - HBRE

OPERATING PRACTICES

B5.

B6.
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Supply Chain Management

The Group has substantially expanded our business,
especially in term of locations, transaction volume and
types. In order to properly manage procurements, the Group
has approved and implemented a more comprehensive
“PROCUREMENT MANAGEMENT POLICIES" which contains
policies and procedures with respect to procurement
including types of purchases, the approval process,
and methods of payment. It is designed to ensure that
the purchase of all goods and services required for the
satisfactory operation of the related office is handled in a
timely, efficient and effective manner with due respect to
best practices. To support the local economic development,
the Group continued the policy of sourcing locally. In 2017,
the total number of local suppliers increased from 50 to 73.

Product Responsibility

In this area, 3 major aspects: product quality, intellectual
property right and privacy are related and material to
address from the sale of our products and services.

- Products Quality

The smart wearable device business made a
breakthrough in the first half of 2017. This product
now has received the 3C certification issued by
China Quality Certification Centre in late March 2017,
CE certification and FCC certification issued by the
European Union and the United States of America in
April and May 2017, respectively. Since then, the Group
is able to sell this product in China, Europe and the
United States of America. The Group has out-sourced
all the manufacturing and assembly works for the
smart wearable device to sub-contractors, and we
are relying on our product controllers to conduct
manufacturing site inspection regularly to perform our
“PRODUCT QUAILTY ASSURANCE PROCESS” to ensure
product complies with the code of conduct and to
ensure the quality. We have sold this product through
wholesalers, and we have given our warranty for
returns and refunds if there is a quality issue. The sale
department has been delegated with the responsibility
to handle sales and post-sale services. During the year,
the Group has not received any request or complaint
on the quality of this product.
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Intellectual Property Rights

As the Group develops our own software, programs,
designs and products, during the research and
development phrase, the Group insists on the principle
and has constantly reminded our software engineers
not to infringe other’s intellectual property rights. If it
is required to use intellectual property rights including
software, application, etc. the Group is willing to pay
the relevant fees. Since the Group has used our own
created proprietary technology to create our own
software, it is also important for ourselves to ensure
that adequate measures are in place to safeguard our
own intellectual property rights against inappropriate
use by a third party. The Group has registered and
patented our own designs, trademarks and proprietary
technology to protect our interests.

The Group respects and strictly complies with laws
and rules related to international intellectual property
rights, and has no record of any intellectual property
right infringement of software and application in 2017.

Privacy

The Group’s business operation especially the financial
technology services has generated large volumes of
private, confidential and sensitive information of the
users and the co-operating lending partners including
personal detailed background information and financial
positions of the users, and the commercial terms
offered by the lenders, etc., these types of information
are extremely sensitive and important, and by law, we
have to cautiously keep and safeguard them.

The Group is fully aware of our obligation, and
has taken measures to ensure safe keeping of the
information. The possible leakage and loss of the
information to outsiders come mainly from two
sources — internal careless handling and theft, and
external theft through hacking into the information
system. For the former, the Group has enforced the
“INFORMATION SECURITY COMPREHENSIVE STRATEGY”,
in which information security protection methods,
handling processes and application procedures have
been stated, taught and implemented. Coupled with
our Employees’ Handbook and Employment Contracts,
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where the CONFIDENTIAL provisions and employees
are prohibited to access without approvals and/or
to leak. Legal actions will be taken on any violation.
For the latter, to act against the outside information
hackers, the Group has authorized the Information
Security Division and Operation and Maintenance
Division to continuously monitor, maintain and update
the hardware, software and security system to prevent
hacking at any time. No privacy information leakage
was reported in 2017.

B7. Anti-corruption

BS.

56

To be a socially responsible corporation, the Group approved
and promulgated the “ANTI-CORRUPTION MANAGEMENT
POLICIES" in September 2017, in which (a) “corruptive acts”
has been defined, which includes bribery, inappropriate
uses of the company assets and rights of the work
position, inappropriate acceptance and giving of gifts and
considerations, thefts of the company assets, violation of
the company rules and regulations for personal and others
benefits, etc., and (b) the Group has established an “Internal
Whistle-blowing Policy” and the “Corruption Management
Procedure” to tackle corruptive acts. Under the process
and system, the Audit Committee is authorized by the
Board to create an environment of anti-corruption and
conduct regular reviews on internal control system so as to
regulate the conduct and behaviour of employees, create
an atmosphere of integrity and dedication, and prevent the
Group’s interest from being harmed.

community Investment

The Group continues with our missions to support and
to retribute to the society and strongly believes that the
future of the society lies with the children. The Group will
therefore continue the sponsorship of the Po Leung Kuk
monthly table-tennis tournament, Christmas and New
Year celebration party for the children. The Group always
supports and encourages the employees and their family
members to participate in volunteer services.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HL

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINA NETCOM TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Netcom Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on
pages 65 to 179, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or 10ss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS AREXEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional BERMANZEHE  BREEKSEARMASERD
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the AHMNGAMBREAFTEREENEE - AfIEE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These #iEAMKEBRREMIMERERSTERLS=AE
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the MAEMHSEEEBEHERER -

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BERERSBE BMEERPEEBREXSENE £

Impairment assessment on concession rights
AT AC Y 1B TS

Refer to Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.
FLHGEV B MM TS REE M B MR M A3N TR -

The carrying amount of the Group’s concession rights as  Our procedures in relation to management's impairment

at 31 December 2017 was Nil. assessment on concession rights included:
EEEBFEEEN2017F12A31BHNEEEAT - B EIR B S FAEEEMERENTETOHRF B
. Discussing indicators of possible impairment with

the management and challenge the validity and
completeness of indicators identified, where such
indicators were identified, assessing the impairment
testing performed by management;

o WA BB RE R LIRAE  MEEEERE
I RETHR  BEEEDTRNB R RTEEN
WA E IR EE R M RERIE

o Assessing management'’s identification of CGU(s)
based on the Group’s accounting policies and our
understanding of the Group's business;

U BiE BSENSTTHEREME SEREEBKN T H®
FHEEEEMBNMBeEEEN
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BREEREE

Impairment assessment on concession rights (Continued)

KT AR E Ry BB FT G ()

The carrying amount of concession rights is
reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit(s) ("CGU(s)") to which the rights
belong was determined by management based on
value-in-use calculations. Estimating the value-in-use of
CGU(s) requires management to estimate the expected
future cash flows from the CGU(s) and to apply a
suitable pre-tax discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. Significant
estimation is required in determining the future cash
flows expected to arise from the lottery business. Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise.
MBEEFEHRBEABDR TG FCEENREEARER
B - HEREHERETRERN - FHAEEREE 2R
CEASBUMNAEWEETREEEREBEGCAEEES
EHRETF HHESELABNNFTREBEERERE
B ReEASEMMNERARBSRRERBEBAT
RE - DFEzSRennBAE RECEHELEEY
REBHARBENERTEZIEHERME o MARKD
ERBEaRELRNER  AREELAERNRERE -&
BERREMEEERTERE -

Management has concluded that, based on the
impairment assessment, the Group recognised
impairment loss of approximately HK$58,239,000 in
relation to concession rights allocated to the lottery
business’s cash-generating unit.

ERERE RERENGH BEXEERXEEBRSES
B KB B Y R R A R RO (B S 1R 958,239,000 7T ©

HREXEE®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BMPEBERTEERREREENS

Assessing the value-in-use calculations
methodologies adopted by the management;
AAERERAEEREERMARANITE

Engaging a valuation expert in assisting to assess the
methodology used and the appropriateness of the
key assumptions; and
ZEMEERBHFEFATEZARBRERNER
R

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence,
such as approved budgets and considering the
reasonableness of these budgets.
BEAREESTBER (WX EBRE)#ETHE T2
BREEENSEM -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BREEREE

HRFLER @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BMPEERTEERREREENS

Revenue recognition on provision of financial technology services

18 11 2 B AR 3 1 W T

Refer to Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3 to the consolidated

financial statements.

FLREAM MR ES LR A M MR AN S FTHE -

The Group maintains sophisticated information
technology (“IT") systems in financial technology
services business in order to track the service provision
for each transaction. The calculation of the services
charge is performed by the IT systems based on
pre-defined key parameters, including service charge
rates. Revenue from financial technology services highly
rely on the information generated from such IT systems.
EEERERBERBEERTFERABENEARK([E
B D) R BB ERZ ZMRGREANR - BRIEE R
BABERSRERBERECEIZLHB(BERBER)
FE - REBSBBEREHNKESEEFRBRZEEMBR

We have identified revenue recognition on provision
of financial technology services as a key audit matter
because a significant portion of the Group’'s revenue
was derived from provision of financial technology
services.

B IRES BB ERBH WS ERREEREEZEE -
RAT SE&EBAMBHREELBRESHBIERS -

In addition, due to the significant volume of transactions
and heavy reliance on the IT systems, minor errors
could, in aggregate, have a material impact to the
consolidated financial statements.

AN BRRZRZGEEARURHEMBBR RGNS EERE
EEERA e GG BRRENEATE -

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition on
provision of financial technology services included:
BEPRHEESHBRRBO RS ERETNIRT B

o Understanding the business process of the financial
technology services business;
. BRSBBIERBEBNET

o Inspecting the key terms and conditions of contracts
with customers and major business partners to
assess if there were any terms and conditions that
may have affected the accounting treatment of the
related revenue; and

J BREEEPREAEBEHEGHNNEZHRARK
U RE T EN R 2RSSR E
BRI RGNS &

o Performing substantive testing on accounting and
financial records.
. Hast ki BasoET RE R -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon
(“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liguidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Hib&

ERFEFAHHMEMNAERET - H0ENBRE
HRFHNER (HER)) T BREEAY
BHERL BB RS -

BB ERAMBHRRFLNE R L EX %H\Mé{

o mEMTEHEMEREREATANZE
o
ARRABZGAMBHREAMS  RANEETRHE

HER - {EmEREMENES RBEE M HREK
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UFHFHEERFERRML - WERPIERSETHT
FRAEMEMIRBEAHRRL - RAAREE
BEE -5t ROBEAFLRS -
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ARENEE

BMBHRERE
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

&%Eﬁ?ﬁ%&%éﬂﬁ%iﬁ%éﬁﬁ}%ﬂ@
BT

BZHNERERAEETHFREM B RAERM
ETNEFAEHRMFFRERMEMHNEAHERR
ao WELBHERME LB RS - HFER
ERMEREE - MEEMAR - HAEARARE
MATHENEMALRREIARETMEL - &F
BEBESERANZE  EREEEEENETH
ERTFTERBAEREMFENERERR
At o SEFRERM ] A ERGF SRR EE A - W (B B BB B
EREBERBEATAZEERERBREAMBER
RIFHMEIRER - IR R SERHERBRL -

ERBEBRTENETEAEES - HFIER
BEEHE  REEREREE - RS

. Bl KA A R R R T BUR A TS
BREFEERFERRANER « Rt RHT
B ARE ZFRE - LA RIERGE R M
HEEMBRTEE  FREMELMER - i
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Lo Kin Kei.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Kin Kei
Practising Certificate Number: P06413

Hong Kong, 20 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 0|= PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
R Hith DA E

m;ﬁl:l B
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5 THERT FHET
(Restated)
(&&E5))
Revenue Y &= 5 28,303 2,011
Cost of sales and services $HE R AR KA (22,231) (1,733)
Gross profit EX 6,072 278
Other income and gain N N & 7 3,271 124
Administrative expenses THER (26,022) (28,280)
Impairment loss of concession rights R EErEsE 15 (58,239) (8,460)
Gain on early redemption of convertible bonds  $EATIE B AJ R AR (E 5 2 Wk - 656
Finance costs BT TS AR 8 (5,593) (5,650)
Other operating expenses HAbsg & & A (6,573) (7,982)
Loss before tax MBLATE B (87,084) (49,314)
Income tax credit Frisfif & 9 15,713 6,170
Loss for the year KEEEBE 10 (71,371) (43,144)
Oother comprehensive income/(expense) HiGEaWA (BxX)
Items that may be reclassified RAREEF 7 BEEEH
subsequently to profit or loss: ZHEE :
Exchange differences on translating BMEGIEB 2 EHEZTE
foreign operations 4,595 (4,853)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) REEFEEMES
for the year WA (%) 4,595 (4,853)
Total comprehensive expense for the year XEEHFAH A (66,776) (47,997)
Loss attributable to: THALEGES:
Owners of the Company PNNETEZF SN (48,293) (37,043)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE (23,078) (6,101)
(71,371) (43,144)
Total comprehensive expense THATELEE
attributable to: B4
Owners of the Company KRARER A (45,571) (39,607)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR B (21,205) (8,390)
(66,776) (47,997)
Loss per share BERER 13
Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) BEARREE (FRRAEW) (1.18) (1.19)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

o MBIkt &

At 31 December 2017 72017412 A31H

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M3E FET TET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WEREZE 14 2,713 2,436
Club debenture FRES 115 115
concession rights e 15 - 60,580
2,828 63,131
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 78 16 1,433 911
Trade and other receivables 5 & E M W A 17 4,992 2,516
Amount due from a related company fEU — R A Fl 2 5RIE 18 574 -
Amount due from a non-controlling interest JE WS BT B A R 2 FEIE R
of a subsidiary R IE 19 1,500 1,497
Pledged bank deposit EHIRITIFRK 20 - 216
Cash and bank balances He MIRTHES 20 59,173 23,817
67,672 28,957
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 I H i FE - 5RIB 21 8,845 7,776
Receipt in advance T8 U I8 197 126
Amount due to an intermediate JE A5 R R AR A B A
holding company 22 598 -
Amount due to a non-controlling interest R B A 7] 2 PR A AE =
of a subsidiary Z B 22 - 472
Current tax liabilities BRI IE B E 916 -
10,556 8,374
Net current assets RBEEFE 57,116 20,583
Total assets less current liabilities WEEBRRBEE 59,944 83,714
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Convertible bonds R E S 23 49,516 43,923
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBRE 24 3,052 19,120
52,568 63,043
Net assets EEFE 7.376 20,671

66 CHINA NETCOM TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

* ANNUAL REPORT 2017




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Eno MBI

At 31 December 2017 72017412 H31H

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 F&T F#ET
Capital and reserves EXR#E

Share capital - ordinary shares AR AN — 3 i AR 25 23,147 15,600

Share capital — non-redeemable A& 7K — 7S] B (B ] R A%
convertible preferred shares BRER 26 - 5,017
Reserves & (15,489) (20,869)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR F¥EH A B 7,658 (252)
Non-controlling interests FE 2 IR A 2 (282) 20,923
Total equity ERBE 7,376 20,671

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 179 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20
March 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

Sun Haitao
Director
=2

FOSEN79H 2R A M B MR EN2018F3 200 &
EFeMEYRBEMLATIESTKRESS

mE

Zhao Ke
e
Director
=

PERBERERDR o 2017FF K
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GOIESENE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRRERARE
Share
capital -
non-
Share  redeemable Convertible Foreign Attributable
capital - convertible Share Capital bonds Share  currency to non-
ordinary  preferred  premium  redemption equity  options  translation Other Accumulated controlling
shares shares  account  reserve  TeServe  Teserve  resenve  reserve losses  Subtotal  interests Total
oS
fx- TAEET A TRRES e S
LER AREAR BOREEER BOHE EoRE BREEE ENRE  EbBRE 2HEE Nt BEEE st
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TRt TR TEx  TEx  FExr  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEr  TEr  TEr Tix
(Note (i) (Note (i)
(Hi3t() (st
Balance at 1 January 201 R0165E
TABZES 15,600 5017 3,348,003 1 29,735 32722 118,256 (49 (3,501,041) 48,244 29313 71557
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - = - - - - Ty (T (8101 (43,140
Other comprehensive expense  AEEEMEATR
for the year - - - - - - (2,564) - - (2,564) 2,289 (4853
Total comprehensive expense  AEEHARREE
for the year - - - - - - (2,564) - (37,043 (39,607) (8390 (47997)
Recognition of equity-settled  BEAMRIELED
share-based payments D OFGIAE - - - - - 4,061 - - - 4,061 - 4,061
Redemption of convertible bonds BB AR ES - - - - (15824) - - - 44 (15,380) - (15380
Deferred tax relating o EREEEEL
convertible bonds ERERE - - - - 2430 - - - - 2430 - 2430
Balance at 31 December 2016 20165123318 2
&4 15,600 5017 3,348,003 1 16,341 36783 115692 (49 (3,537,640) (252) 20923 2671
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ya\
D

TT RS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FOTREARL
Share
capital -
non-
Share  redeemable Convertible Foreign Attributable
capital - convertible Share  Capital  Capital honds Share  currency to non-
ordinary ~ preferred  premium contribution - redemption equity ~options translation Other Accumulated controlling
shares shares  account  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses  Subtotal interests Total
R&-
B&- FURETR Bx  TRRER e FER
ERR  REXR ROEER  :ERE  RERE BEEE BREEE EIRE  HHRE  BiEE M REEE &3t
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TER TER TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TiEn TEn TEn
(Note (i) (Note (ii) (Note (ii)
(e (R (Rt ak(i))
Balance at 1 January 2017 R2017%
1818 2E8 15,600 5017 3,348,003 - 1 16,341 36783 115,692 (49)  (3,537,640) (252) 20923 20,671
Loss for the year KEEFE = = = = = = = = - (48293) (48293 (3078  (11.371)
Other comprehensive income  KEEEBRAUA
for the year - - - - - - - 2722 - - 2122 1873 4,595
Total comprehensive expense  AEE&ABXHE
for the year - - - - - - - 2102 - (48,293 (45571) (21,205 (66,776
Conversion of non-redeemable ¥ AR TBATER
convertible preferred shares  B%K 5017 (5,017) - - - - - - - - - - -
Issue of ordinary shares under £ EBREHHRT
share option scheme BER 580 -5 - - - 4 - - - 189 - 18
Release of reserve upon share RERELNARN
options lapsed B - - - - - - (3230 - - 3m - - -
Issug of new ordinary shares  RERARERS
under shares subscription ~~ HEBR 1,950 - 30030 - - - - - - -390 -390
Transaction cost attributable  AFEERER 2
to issue of new ordinary RAHE
shares - - (19) - - - - - - - (19) - (19)
Deemed capital contribution  BAFEERAF
by an intermediate holding 3%
company - - T - - - - - T T
Balance at 31 December 2017 W2017E12A31R 2
] 23,147 - 3,393,805 9,628 1 16,341 - 18414 (49)  (3,953,629) 7,658 (282) 1,376
Notes: B3

0} The capital contribution reserve represents capital contribution from an (i)
intermediate holding company, please refer to note 31 to the consolidated

financial statements for details.

(ii) The capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the share (ii)

capital of the Company repurchased and cancelled.

(ifi)

Other reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid for
the additional interest in the subsidiary and the non-controlling interest’s
share of the assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated statement of

(iif)

financial position at the date of the acquisition of the non-controlling interests.

TERBERE - HTREZRARMEIE
B BMERMEEI -

BAERFREIEA DR EEREHOBRAEREE -

PERBERERDR o 2017FF K

FEBLHER

H b e R UiE SE 2 I 2 B B R A BT ISR R Rk
MM EB AR EIMER N o R E LR R EEZE
ERAEMEZER -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
o RERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHT
Cash flows from operating activities RETBHEBHRENE
Loss for the year KFEEEIE (71,371) (43,144)
Adjustments for: Bt T3 SIEELFHE
Income tax credit recognised in profit or loss RERTPERZMEHER (15,713) (6,170)
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss RIB R Z AR 5,593 5,650
Interest income B A (18) (31
Waiver of other payables oo E A e 3B (3,057) -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEMREBZEE
plant and equipment 102 65
Gain on early redemption of convertible bonds 2 A 8& B A] 32 B & 5 2 W 25 - (656)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - BE L REZITE 1,133 1,100
Amortisation of concession rights T AR R 2 8 6,471 7,470
Impairment loss of concession rights AR 2 R EE 1B 58,239 8,460
Impairment loss on trade receivables H S EWHIE 2R EEE 666 -
Expense recognised in respect of AL E AR D T2
equity-settled share-based payments NEZERzZH = 4,061
(17,955) (23,195)
Movements in working capital BEEGE
Increase in inventories FEIE N (522) 911)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5 K H b fE U FRIE (35 ),
receivables Vo (3,142) 7,254
Increase in amount due from a related JiE Ui — i B 28 2 R RIS N
company (570) -
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from a FEW P B 2~ Rl 2 SRR R 2R 2
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary R\ (Em),w (3) 730
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other B 5N H e A i,
payables ORi) 3,888 (108)
Increase in receipt in advance SER G ORI 71 126
Decrease in amount due to a director FEREEFRIBR D = (136)
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to a JETB B 2~ Al FEIE R R 2
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary FIE G A,/ o0 (234) 257
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBFRRES T (18,467) (15,983)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=\ we
mDIRERE &
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
cash flows from investing activities REFHMESRERE
Interest received 2 UH 14 31
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposit I FIEITER 216 -
Increase in pledged bank deposit PR IT 15 F3E 0 - m
Payment for property, plant and equipment W BB RZBENRK (1,377) (2,524)
Proceed from disposal of property, HEWE - BEMEEMEHRIE
plant and equipment - 1
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBMARESFE (1,147) (2,493)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETEMESRERE
Repayment of convertible bonds BB EFH - (36,084)
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares RIFERER S BT SRR 2
under share option scheme Fr{S 3K 18 11,892 -
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares under  1BIBIRMD REEITE @R
shares subscription FriS k18 31,980 -
Payment for transaction cost attributable to SRHBETHEBRBREGIRHKAN
issue of new ordinary shares (19) -
Advance from an intermediate holding company & i3 % A 5= 3% 10,755 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEFBE(FTA) R FE
financing activities 54,608 (36,084)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBESSHEEM ORD) BHE
cash equivalents 34,994 (54,560)
Cash and cash equivalents at FzHEeRESEE
the beginning of year 23,817 78,077
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net R a)HE e 362 300
cash and cash equivalents at FRCZ2BESRESEE
the end of year 59,173 23,817
Analysis of the balances of cash and RERBRESHEERZIN
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHER 59,173 23,817
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Netcom Technology Holdings Limited (the "Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In the opinion
of the directors, its parent company is 51RENPIN.COM INC.
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) and its ultimate
parent company is 51 Credit Card Inc. (incorporated in the
Cayman Islands). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Sun
Haitao, who is also the chairman and executive director of
the Company. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information section of the annual
report.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
were involved in financial technology services business,
smart wearable device business, lottery business and sports
training business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform with current year’s presentation as the Group has
introduced additional segments of (i) financial technology
services business segment regarding the provision of
financial technology services; (ii) smart wearable device
business segment regarding the research, development
and sale of smart wearable devices; and (iii) sports training
business segment regarding the provision of sports training
services. Accordingly, consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and segment
information for the year ended 31 December 2016 for
comparative purposes have been reclassified to reflect
the newly reportable segments. In addition, income and
expenses for provision of sports training services for the
year ended 31 December 2016, which were previously
included in “Other income and gain” and “Administrative
expenses”, have been reclassified and presented in
“Revenue” and “Cost of sales and services”, respectively,
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

—REH

FERBIERAERAR(ARRDRERS
BERAEEE NHEHSEMKLA
—MZBRERAA - ARA 2RO RES
BEZXZMERAE ([BRZA])GEMLET -
FE=2RA - ES QR AS5IRENPIN.COM INC.
(MNEBEZESHMKYL)  MEKKEA
AIRSIEARERAR (MHAEHSFMAK
M) HRRIEBRAAARBEERNITES
BREBRE - ARBIZAMPREEREEE
EEEMYNFRARER —FIEE -

HE20177F12A3MBLEFE - ARFRHEN
BAa(SBAIAER]HESHEERYG
X5 ShRTFRLEES TEEBRER
AR ER -

S

BHMBHRRURNRBZINEEE BT (B
)BITR

R A E S| ARG D H0)F R RS BB
R BB ARG R ()% kit
MRHEBEFRRBIEETHRBESD
1 Rliiyy IR E JIRRTS 2 B B PR
EBOB HETUBREFEEENDHEN
MEARFREZE2Y - Rt BIELLER®ZRZ
BE2016F12A31MA L FE2GAEE M E
MEERARAESBERGEER S H
NRRZEFIBAIZHMOLE - I RBE
2016F12A3MB L FERHER B IIRRBE D
WA Ko 7 32 (S AR A T A A B s |
[TTBAX ) ERGABRRRAEMEEBAR
AR BIEHDBRE2INRIRE] RIHE R
ARFERCA] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE
CURRENT YEAR

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“"HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSS
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 12

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. In
addition, the amendments also require disclosures on
changes in financial assets if cash flows from those financial
assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash
flows from financing activities.

2.

ERMEREBIEEVHRE
HA(TEEMBREER]

REAFERHER2EBYBREE
A2 &7

AEBERAFEAERERAEEGHAMAE
(IBEEGFTEAE]) M 2 AT HIE REE
RIARBMBHELER -

BB EAUNEIR HEFE
P
BAGFTER BLK B 18 R
F12%% 2 185] HEHEEE
BEEMBHMEER (ERBEYBHREGE
1258 2 (&3] AI2014F 22016 4%F
B 2202 —
iifoa

BT Xt ES  RAFERBE BV KR
SRAZEFTLBEHARERFELBESF
B2BMBRBARMARE,XZEHEE MR
RITBWBEEREATE

BEBETEREIRZIETRETE

AEBERAFEE KA EET -
BB ERERBERBEN S HBRER
REGUBEREEDHELABED (B
ERERIRLED) - o - BBET IR
E - MRE S REENR SRR KRE T
BIEREEDMA SR NARBANS
BEENED -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

on o hFs sh& M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSS") (continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE
CURRENT YEAR (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
(Continued)

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries
or other businesses, (iii) the effect of changes in foreign
exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other
changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 30. Consistent with the
transition provision of the amendments, the Group has
not disclosed comparative information for the prior year.
Apart from additional disclosure in note 30, the application
of these amendments has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

2.

ERMEREBIEEVBRE
HA (TEBM RS

RAFEBFNER 2 BBUHBREE
R ZAERT (42)

BEEBEERE7 R T RESE (E)

T BB HREERBENTEE
BERSROED  (NVHAIE i&%%%
RS M ER MR ES : (iHEX
FHHTE: (VATFEMNES  RVHEME
& o

FERZERB RO LRSS HRENH
7£30 ° RIBIEEThR 2 BIE RS - NEE L &
BEL-FENLRER - R E308 I
BB BRAZFETLESAKEREH
BHRRERTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSS") (continued)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT

NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSS

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Ccustomers and the related
Amendments’

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
ASsociate or Joint Venture?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

AS part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSS 2014-2016 Cycle'

Transfers of Investment Property’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSS

2015-2017 Cycle?
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

@H%%&&%ﬁﬁ?ﬁxﬁﬁ
HA(TEBMBREERD )

CHEMEHRERZHTEREBTE
M BHEER
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BN BREER
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BB RE 2R
$15%

BB TS RE R
165

BB TSRS R
£17%

BRI BHRERE

ZEERERLN

BAMBRERE

ZEERERLH

BAYMBREER
R} ERT

BAYBREER
FORZEFT

BRI BREED
EXlipA I
BB BHREEL

F10% K
BB gER
EYIEd
B ER
E28% 2 187
BB ER
F28% 2 BAT

BAGHER
FA0 2 BFT
BANBREER

ZIEFT
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KEEFE Nz RIGE
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HE?

wmEAEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

Except as mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other new and
amendments to HKFRSs and Interpretations will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirement of HKFRS 9 which is relevant to the Group
is the impairment of financial assets. HKFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit loss are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies, application of HKFRS 9 in the future
may have an impact on the Group’s financial assets. The
expected credit loss model may result in early provision of
the credit losses which have not yet incurred in relation to
the Group's financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 in the future may not have other significant impact
on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities based on the analysis of the
Group's financial instruments as at 31 December 2017.

2.

ERMEREBIEEVBRE
A (TEBMBHREERD @)

EHEMERMRERZHBREBTE
M BHEER 2

BRI XA ES  RABEREN  BRAAE
B REETBEAEM B REERREED
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BEBHMBHREEREIN ZMTA

EREMBMELREIRSIASBRGESH
BE SBAEE —RUBSFHEZIHARTE
REBEEZREMRTE -

BN B REERFO P EAEE AR 2
ITERERTHMEEZRHE - BELGE
AIEIRIBE T REELAEEEEEXFER
R BRMBREENEIRRERBHEE
BERRAE FAHEEEREARTER
BREREAHMZEREEFRLZEEY
EEBRZEHAK  URREERRE T
MIERANRZEY -T2 BABFHELE
EEEMTHEREEER -

BREAEEzERTARRREERE A
BERBSVBREENFERAIEEASE
EreREEELEYE BHEEBBER
ARSI B AEBEUBERNATEZCRE
ERFELRRBZEZEESBRES - RE
HAREEN2017F12831BZ2¢M T AEZ S
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CREBERECECHELEMBEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts
and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

2.

ERMEREBIEEVHRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact
on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the
respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents operating lease payments as
operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows by the Group.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$3,007,000 as disclosed in note 32. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS
16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of such leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of approximately HK$459,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based
on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use the
underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of
such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and such
adjustments are considered as additional lease payments.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be
included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date,

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the
voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

] any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

CHANGES IN THE GROUP’'S OWNERSHIP
INTERESTS IN EXISTING SUBSIDIARIES

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant reserves
between the Group and the non-controlling interests
according to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’
proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

CHANGES IN THE GROUP'S OWNERSHIP
INTERESTS IN EXISTING SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);
and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liguidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
made against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the "measurement period” (which cannot
exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or 10ss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the
power to control the financial and operating policies so as
to obtain benefits from their activities. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are excluded from consolidation from the
date that control ceases.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
Changes in net assets of the associate/joint venture other
than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or a
joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate

r joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or
joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to
fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Revenue from provision of management, marketing and
operating services for lottery system and lottery halls is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Revenue from the sale of smart wearable devices is
recognised when the products are delivered and titles have
passed.

Revenue from provision of sports training services is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

LEASING (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or l0ss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of foreign currency translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the government
of the PRC, subsidiaries of the Company operating in
the PRC participate in a local municipal government
retirement benefits scheme (the “PRC Scheme”), whereby
the subsidiaries are required to make contributions, as
calculated under the rules specified by the relevant PRC
local government authorities, to the PRC Scheme to fund
their retirement benefits. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of
all existing and future retired employees of the subsidiaries.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the PRC
Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions under
the PRC Scheme mentioned above. Contributions under the
PRC Scheme are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as incurred.
There are no provisions under the PRC Scheme whereby
forfeited contributions may be used to reduce future
contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share
options reserve. For share options that vest immediately at
the date of grant, the fair value of the share options granted
is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to suppliers/consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where that
fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted, measured at the date the entity obtains the goods
or the counterparty renders the service. The fair values of
the goods or services received are recognised as expenses
(unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as
assets).

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “loss before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method as follows:

Furniture, fixtures and fittings 3-5 years

Computer and office equipment  3-5 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of term
of lease or 3 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are
reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an asset individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

3. FESTTHE®E

BRREREEZRE

RBESHER  AEERFSEAJERFHA
RZBERRENEEZRAE  WETESE
ERRBTZEEERRBERR - MR
TRERBS AAGBFEEZAKRE S
BB EREBRZEE(WMA) -

B A ENEEZ T K@ - BIAE
Bt B EEMBZREELAEM 2K
EEE-HEAENZAE D EEE
CEEENENREM[ABCELEMN - X
PEEEABNZEE-—HMOEREEZRE
EEBLZ&NER -

AESEAFEREEKAEEAERE
LBREE A EFEREER Bt ARKE
eREEAMARBREABEHERE  Z8
RERMEEKEEEABRZMSHETRAE
REeREBHARCHEZEE (IREELE
BA)BEBERR -

hERBERERAT « 20175F% 103



104

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro-rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” ("FVTPL"), “available-for-sale” (“AFS”) financial assets
and “loans and receivables”. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n D WIS ¥R Bl ot

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including financial assets included in trade
and other receivables, amount due from a related company,
amount due from a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary,
pledged bank deposit and cash and bank balances) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

. disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets are assessed for impairment on a
collective basis even if they were assessed not to be
impaired individually. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, as well as observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or 10ss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible bonds are classified
separately as financial liability and equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. Where the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to accumulated
losses. No gain or 10ss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amount due to an intermediate holding company, amount
due to a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary and
convertible bonds) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

()  the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or 10ss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n D WIS ¥R Bl ot

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or a joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity),

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of concession rights

The carrying amount of concession rights is reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amount of these assets, or, where
appropriate, the cash-generating unit(s) (“CGU(s)") to which
they belong, is calculated as the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. Estimating the value in
use requires the Group to estimate the expected future cash
flows from the CGU(s) and to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows
(Note 15).

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of concession
rights related to lottery business is Nil (2016: HK$60,580,000),
after deducting the accumulated amortisation and
impairment of approximately HK$2,416,528,000 (2016:
HK$2,193,518,000) as detailed in note 15.

Significant estimation is required in determining the future
cash flows expected to arise from the lottery business.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise.
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MR2017F12H310 - AR ZEB 2T
“iE 2 BEEE AT (20164 : 60,580,000
J0) + B0k REH#E 8 R (E £92,416,528,000
7 7 (20164F ¢ 2,193,518,000 & 7t) (FEH R
BiEE15) °

REETHEHELR %ﬁ%‘%%ﬂ‘%z RERAERE
BHEZELEAMGT - FRERNERRASR
ERAMAL  AIRREEA B AREREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

The Group’s policy for doubtful receivables is based on the
on-going evaluation of the collectability and ageing analysis
of the trade and other receivables and on management’s
judgements. Considerable judgements is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. If the financial conditions
of the Group's debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
impairment loss on trade and other receivables may be
required.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation charges where
useful lives are less than previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

4.

EXESHHUERATIAEEREE
ZEERR#)

A FTEERRERZEERIF (&)

ESRAMEBEKRNEZHERRE

AEBEHRURZREZBRRIREEZ S ME
i & U AR SR AT W [B1 1500 2 5 AR AT A - BRIk
W EIRE 2 HIE M AT » AR FRIK
REZERAERBBFFRFELAESH
B BRFEFARKBZEEMRRBEN
R - WAREEHFAZHBERREE
HISSEL (T RBE N - AIATRER BIE L BRSN 2 &
W 7 B R e Eo R M SRR (E S 18

¥ BERREL TREAFH

EEEARBTEME BMEAREKBHZGEA
ERFRHARMBITER S - ZFMHEAIR
BEUHERNERIZNE BERREBER
ERFHBEERMEL - RAIgEm N X
M E R Ko 8 F R BRIL 1T R BE M AE
B - WA ERFRE A2 A5 /% - Al
EEERRSITERS  ABERERLE
Z BT £ 3B B X IE BRSO E WEH SOMUR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n D WIS ¥R Bl ot

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

REVENUE 5. =
An analysis of the Group'’s revenue for the year is as follows: RERFAEE 2 WRZITHT -
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHExT
(Restated)
(gE5)
Provision of financial technology services 124t & @RI R& 17,296 -
Sale of smart wearable devices HES R FRRE 8,556 -
Sale of lottery equipment HELERE 79 72
Provision of management, marketing, MEERGEREERERHEETE
and operating services for lottery system  TISHE R LB RE
and lottery halls 144 264
Provision of sports training services B B I AR AR 7% 2,228 1,675
28,303 2,011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating segments are determined based
on information reported to the board of directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods or services delivered or provided.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:

(@)

120

Financial technology services business — provision
of financial technology services (including credit
facilitation services, post-origination services and
financial guarantee services),

Smart wearable device business — research,
development and sale of smart wearable devices;

Lottery business - development of computer
software, hardware and application system, sale of
self-developed technology or results, provision of
relevant technical consultancy services in the PRC and
development and provision of operation system sector
of the PRC lottery market; and

Sports training business — provision of sports training
services.

6.

AEBZREDEDREBEAARRESS (A
TERERRE ([ TEREREE]D) 2N
ETERNEZERET DBERRFAGE
IR SR E M RGN TESE

ARME  ARERBEZEVEREENSE
BRAL T E 2 A 2R MEETANT ¢

@ SEMERBER—REHSBBERS
(BREEERERY  BERRE NS
ERRDS)

b) BEFBLBEE-TREHELES
il

© XNEXK-ETEFRESHANMS - B
MERAESL HEB TME 2 RMEAX
R REHEBRME RS - AR
FEEBEHSRELREREERS &

(d) BEIVREE - RHEEIRRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. "EER (#®
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS THERRERES
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and AT 2RO BE D AEBRERE
results by reportable segment: BT
Financial technology Smart wearable Sports training
services husingss device husiness Lottery business business Total
SRNHREER BHRERREY YEER EEEEES st
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 216 2017 2016
HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS000 — HKS'000  HKS000 ~ HK$'000  HKSO00
T#n Tén T#n Thn T#n Tén T#n Thn T#n Tén
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(@E3]) (@5 (EE3]) (@5
Segment revenue; AENE:
Revenue from external customers  RENIEP2UE 17,29 - 8,556 - 23 3% 2228 1675 28,303 201
Segment oss HEEE (2,249) - (1,261) (5,360~ (72,49) (26,139 1) (12~ (75806)  (3151)
Interest on bank deposits, FEFHS
other income and gain Bl A R 3211 124
Central administration costs hAGER A (14,549)  (17.92])
Loss before tax hingE (87,084)  (49314)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no
inter-segment sales in the current year (2016: Nil).

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment 0ss represents the loss incurred by each segment
without allocation of interest on bank deposits, other
income and gain and central administration costs. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

tEHF s BREEXBIINBEL ZK
e RAFELESRHEHEE (20165F « ) ©

RENBZ G RRANIIMMAEE L G
ABRE—H - nEBEERESOBELZER
(W EREIRITIF - E AU Mzt Je R AT
BRADEFNE) o IR ERD B Mt E D
BREMMEELERREER IR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

6.

Financial technology Smart wearable
services business device business
SRNARERR BESERER

2017 2016 217

201

PEER®
PEEERER
Sports training
Lottery business business Total
YEEH BEIRER it
2017 016 217 2018 2017 016

HK$'000 HKS'000 ~ HK$'000 HKS'000 ~ HK$'000 HKS'000 ~ HK$'000 HKS'000 ~ HK$'000 HKS'000

fén TEr  TEx  TEr  TExn  TEr  TEn  TEr @ TEn TEn

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(@Ej5) (@ E5) (@ Ej5) (@ E5)

Segment assets PEEE 13,412 - 7842 5,545 4,162 63,263 2,795 2,789 2821 71597

Corporate and unallocated assets  P£RAAEEE 42,289 20491

Consolidated assets GREE 70,500 92,088

Segment liabilities AEEE 2573 - 884 w3 H5AM OB 212 19 60882 69718

Corporate and unallocated bxRAnlEE

liabilities 2,242 169

Consolidated ligbiiies Geafk 63124 71417
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and REESEXRBRESERSEER :

allocating resources between segments:

. all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than pledged bank deposit and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets. Concession rights are
allocated to operating segments; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than other unallocated head office and corporate
liabilities.

A AEHSREGESBMIHFENES
TERREMFRSRABRAANEE -

FHKERIEELEDTE &

FIBRBEANPRERLE D BMIFEMAK
DEEMBR AT RIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n D WIS ¥R Bl ot

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (&)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION Hitt o EER
Financial technology Smart wearable Sports training
services husiness device business Lottery business business Total
SHNRRBER BHRERREY YELK BEHIRER Eh
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000 ~ HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000
TRn  Thn ThR Thn Tén  Thn ThR Tér  TEr  TEn
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(@%3) (&E5) (Z%3) (mEH)
Depreciation nE = - 746 644 218 449 2 | 966 1,094
Unallocated depreciation AOENE 167 b
Total depreciation nERE 1133 1,100
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment HEEE - - - - 102 85 - - 102 85
Effective interest on convertible  T#RES 2
bonds ERHI= - - - - 5,593 5,650 - - 5,593 5,650
Gain on early redemption of FRRAEOTA
convertible bonds k52 ha - - - - - (656) - - - (656)
Impairment loss on trade EHRWAE
receivables REFE 666 - - - - - - - 666 -
Amortisation of concession rights  HEHE LR - - - - 6,471 7410 - - 6,471 7400
Impairment loss of concession & F AL ER EFIE
rights - - - - 58,239 8,460 - - 58,239 8,460
Addifions tonon-current assets  EEHEEHAE - - 4 2384 - 125 8 4 1 2513
Unallocated Ly 1,365 1
Total additions to non-curent ERHAERMEE
assets 1377 25
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group operates in two principal geographical areas — the
PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group’s revenue from external customers by location of
operations and information about its non-current assets by
location of assets are detailed below:

THEER ®)
it & &R

AEBzEBETEURNMELR -PEEE
7 e

AREEEBLEE D 2 KA BES 2K
AREEERBES ZIPRDEEEHFE
M :

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REMBEE 2 Wz RBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T T FH T THET
(Restated)
(&E5)
PRC s 26,075 336 1,493 62,999
Hong Kong &% 2,228 1,675 1,335 132
28,303 2,011 2,828 63,131
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS FEEFZER

For the year ended 31 December 2017, none of the customer
with revenue was accounted for more than 10% of the total
revenue of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, none of the customer
(Restated) with revenue was accounted for more than 10% of
the total revenue of the Group.

BZE20177F12ANBILFE - HEEF 2K
RIEAREE B Z10%A £ -

B E2016F12A31R L FE - #iE (KEF)
BEPZBS AR EAWE 210%M L -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

on o 5 WR & B 5t

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

OTHER INCOME AND GAIN 7. HWARWK=R
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(& &E7))
Bank interest income RITF B U 14 31
Interest income B U A 4 -
Waiver of other payables T E b JE S FE 3,057 -
sundry income FMIEUA 154 93
Net foreign exchange gain PE 5 Y2 5 5R 42 -
3,271 124

FINANCE COSTS 8. B

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Effective interest on convertible bonds AR E S Z BB R 5,593 5,650
FEMBERERAT o 2017F5F% 125
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n o WIS ¥R Bl ot

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

INCOME TAX CREDIT 9. FiSHER
INCOME TAX RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR RERBRZFEH
LOSS
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax B EA %Y 18
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR RS 355 -
Overprovision in prior years BEFEREREE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI - (M
Deferred tax (Note 24) IEIE R IE (Y 5224) (16,068) (6,169)
Total income tax credit recognised in RIEEBR TSR RERSE
profit or loss (15,713) (6,170)
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of LR FE BB RSB IIRE ST E R R A

the estimated assessable profit for both years. No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax had been made as the Group had

BER16.5% (20165 : 16.5%) 31 & - AR E
MM FEREB T ERETBEENBRIUERM

no assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong w A B R EENEB AL RE -

for both years.

Under the prevailing tax law in the PRC, the Enterprise BBEFERTRHE - REMMNE QR MIES
Income Tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both EZhEFMBHMEER25%  EMaEER

years. Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at
the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. "o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n D WIS ¥R Bl ot

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 9. FREHER )

INCOME TAX RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR
LOSS (continued)

REZBIZAEH (@)

AEEZHBARREERE RS
ARFRBATER Z HROT -

The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss & R E A2 E
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FHT
Loss before tax IR (87,084) (49,314)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of ~ RIEF B M BRI E16.5%TE 2
16.5% (2016: 16.5%) 18 (2016%F : 16.5%) (14,369) (8,137)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for A1 X 2 FHIBEFE
tax purpose 3,253 2,135
Tax effect of income not taxable for TARBMBAZ T IE &
tax purpose 1) (127)
Overprovision in prior years BEFERERE = )
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERZBIBEBE HIEZE 3 2,601
Utilisation of tax losses previously FRBTARER CHIEEE
not recognised (684) -
Tax effect on different tax rate of group REMAERREE SEEE
entities operating in other jurisdictions TRBEzZZE (3,915) (2,647)
Income tax credit for the year REEFREHER (15,713) (6,170)
INCOME TAX RECOGNISED DIRECTLY IN BEERERBERZMEH
EQUITY
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$" 000
F&T FE T
PRC Enterprise Income Tax: FEIBEMRER :
Waiver of amount due to B EAT R R KIE
an intermediate holding company (529) -

PERBERERDR o 2017FF K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10. XEFEEE B
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Loss for the year has been arrived at RNFEFIBTIEHBR T
after charging: ZIHEEE
Cost of inventories recognised as an ERABRBAZIZFEMR
expense (included in cost of sales and (FT ASHE KRR AN)
services) 5,228 29
Auditors’ remuneration ZEHD & 1,500 960
Employee benefits expense (excluding EERANER(TEEEZHSE)
directors’ emoluments)
— Salaries and other benefits in kind —FHehEMEMEF 6,247 5,262
— Contributions to retirement benefits —RREFFTEIH R
schemes 295 286
— Equity-settled share-based payments — ABRBE S B AR (D AT 2 3R - 406
Directors’ emoluments EE 2,655 7,352
Total staff costs @E TR 9,197 13,306
Minimum lease payments paid under BREtTtHREFLEHEE
operating leases in respect of EN&ERE
land and buildings 2,518 2,086
Net foreign exchange loss bE 5 B 18 )5 58 = 143
Depreciation of property, ME BMERSBZTE
plant and equipment 1,133 1,100
Expense in relation to share options FERTEMEZERECHX
granted to consultants - 3,655
Financial guarantee loss (included in FBEREE GFAHEE R
cost of sales and services) B 75 7 7) 14,061 -
Amortisation of concession rights RRaracs ey (A MEEER)
(included in other operating expenses) 6,471 7,470
Provision for impairment loss on trade B 5 W 2 R EEEEE
receivables (included in cost of sales GTAHE RRBKA)
and services) 666 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - WEREE
equipment (included in other operating ZEBGIAEMKEEERA)
expenses) 102 65

128
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z=2017F 128318 It F &

'Y

_J_ym-D]kECTORS' EMOLUMENTS M. EEZMS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five (2016: A (2016F : AH) EE LT ER Z B
five) directors were as follows: ST

2017 20178
Executive directors 4178%

Sun Haitao (Note () Fas (W)
Zhao Ke (Note () 8 (f0)
Leung Ngai Man (Note (i) o ()
W Wei Hua (Note (i) REE (W30

Independent non-executive directors ~ BUEHTEES

Song Ke (Note (i) A (H3E(i)
W Bo (Note (i) RO (W)
Michael Yu Tat Chi (Note (i) RES (W)
Xuan Hong (Note {iv) 4 (M)
Qi Ji (Note (V) B (M3Hv)
Cai Wei Lun (Note (iv) 4 AGRI)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 1M1 EEME @
Salaries  Contributions
andother  toretirement  Equity-settled
benefits benefits share-based  Discretionary
Fees in kind schemes payments honuses Total
5 R RIVER  REEED
e EhENEH BT ROTA AR WERL s
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
AL AL T AL AL AL
2016 2016%
Executive directors Y17gs
Leung Ngai Man (Note (i) BB () - 6,500 18 - - 6,518
Wur Wei Hua (Note (i) HATE () - 74 18 - - 764
Independent non-executive directors ~ BuFHTES
Xuan Hong (Note (iv) 47 (3Ev) - - - - - -
Qi Ji (Note (iv) B (MiHv) - - - - - -
Cai Wei Lun (Note (i) R () 70 - - - _ 70
70 7,246 36 - - 7,352

Notes:

(i) Appointed on 17 August 2017.

(ii) Resigned on 17 August 2017.

(iii) Appointed on 31 August 2017.

(iv) Resigned on 31 August 2017.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, since
the appointment of chief executive officer of the Company
remains outstanding, no emoluments were paid to the chief

executive officer of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2016:

Nil).

0) M20174F8 A17REEE o
(i) R2017F8A17HBHE °
(i) 7201748 A3NBEE(T o
(iv) 20178 A31HBHE °

REE2017F NM2016F 128318 IEFE - @
RART M AREEITHRAR - 00 EIAR
NATTREHBE -

RERNWEBELLHUAREETH AR S
RS (20165 - &) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

12. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (EXCLUDING
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

12.

BEME

BERANER (ESEMERM)

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAETT

Salaries and other benefits in kind HehHEMEYEF 6,180 5,262
Contributions to retirement benefits RIKAEFET B

schemes 295 286

Equity-settled share-based payments VARG #E B AR D A 2 3% - 406

Discretionary bonuses B IEIEAT 67 -

6,542 5,954

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2016: two) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosure in note 11
above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2016: three)
individuals were as follows:

TERSHESR

RARBELEREHEES WA (20165
ME) RARBIZES  BEZMESHEN EX
MENZEER - 8 T =% (20165F : =%)
EeFHEEZMEFBEET

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FATT

Salaries and other benefits in kind HeRHEMEYEF 1,481 1,587
Contributions to retirement benefits RIKAEFET B

schemes 34 32

Equity-settled share-based payments VARG #E B A RR D S 2 3k - 406

Discretionary bonuses BIETEAL 56 -

1,571 2,025
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

12. EEME &)

TEBEHER @)
BEZMENFATEHE :

Number of individuals

EEH®E
2017 2016
Emolument bands B < &3 [E
Nil = HK$1,000,000 # — 1,000,000/ JT 3 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 7t — 1,500,0007 7T - 1

During the year ended 31 December 2017, approximately
HK$150,000 was paid by the Group to one of the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group and approximately HK$292,000 was paid by the Group
to two of the five highest paid individuals as compensation
for loss of office, of which approximately HK$140,000 was
paid to Wu Wei Hua (former director of the Company) and
included in the disclosure in note 11.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid
individuals including directors, as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

HE2017F12A3NBLEFE  AEERASA
= EE P r— & X B £ £150,000/%8
TEBEBMAREBRMAREERZ
HE RAEERARAERTNEETRHR
B #292,0008 TCEABER A E - L
140,000/ e 2 TRV EE (R ARIRIES) I
WA FE11E R E -

REE2016F 128318 IEFE - KAEEHE
mMEAAEEaFHEE (BEES) XTM2
YE BB EN I A& B 5k 1A A 5 B By 2 32 B
SERBEBME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BRRE#
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share KRAREEARENSREARAREEHE L
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the TYIHEETE

following data:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&ET FET
Loss BB
Loss for the year attributable to owners of B EEREAREESHEMS
the Company for the purposes of basic ZRFEERAGHEE AEGEE
and diluted loss per share (48,293) (37,043)
2017 2016
‘000 ‘000
T T B%
Number of shares i &vig 4=
Weighted average number of ordinary R ESREARBEEEMS
shares for the purposes of basic and ZERK 2 INEEFHE
diluted loss per share 4,098,660 3,120,035
The computation of diluted loss per share did not assume FTEEREEEER  RIEBBEAQTER
the exercise of the Company’s potential ordinary shares BEERE I ARREBEERAR  TAEL
granted under the Company’s share option scheme, AMBRELEREATRRBRESRETE  RA
non-redeemable convertible preferred shares and BEBTHEMIBAEREBEEFE -

convertible bonds since their exercise and conversion would
have an anti-dilutive effect.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

134

14. % - BERRZRE

Furniture, Computer
fixtures and and office Leasehold
fittings equipment improvements Total
B R ERR HE
REE BAERE MERE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL FTAEL FEL FTEL
Cost BA&
Balance at 1 January 2016 7201651418
a3 715 4197 220 5,132
Additions nNE 253 711 1,560 2,524
Disposals HE (26) (181) (214) (421)
Effect of foreign currency exchange EREBFE
differences (47) (260) (72) (379
Balance at 31 December 2016 and R2016F12A31H
1 January 2017 R2017F1A18 2 &5 895 4,467 1,494 6,856
Additions NE - 103 1,274 1,377
Disposals & (373) (1,010) - (1,383)
Effect of foreign currency exchange ERLEEFE
differences 41 244 107 392
Balance at 31 December 2017 20174
12A31B 2 &8 563 3,804 2,875 7,242
Accumulated depreciation and EHFTERAE
impairment
Balance at 1 January 2016 ©“201651A418
LR (688) (3,009) (220) (3,917)
Eliminated on disposals of assets HEEERYEHE 24 117 214 355
Depreciation expense NERX (36) (544) (520) (1,100)
Effect of foreign currency exchange EREERE
differences 37 178 27 242
Balance at 31 December 2016 and R2016F12A31H
1 January 2017 R2017F1R1B 2 &% (663) (3,258) (499) (4,420)
Eliminated on disposals of assets HEBER 372 909 - 1,281
Depreciation expense MERY (53) (415) (665) (1,133)
Effect of foreign currency exchange EHEREYE
differences (26) (176) (55) (257)
Balance at 31 December 2017 20175
1283182 &% (370) (2,940) (1,219) (4,529)
Carrying amounts BHE
Balance at 31 December 2017 R20174
12A31B 2 &% 193 864 1,656 2,713
Balance at 31 December 2016 R2016F
1283182 &% 232 1,209 995 2,436
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

15. CONCESSION RIGHTS

15. {FRFIEER

HK$'000
FAET
Cost AR
Balance at 1 January 2016 R2016F1 818 2 &6k 2,411,981
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences EHREREgE (157,883)
Balance at 31 December 2016 and 2016F12831H K

1 January 2017 2017118 2 &% 2,254,098
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences fERERETE 162,430
Balance at 31 December 2017 2017124318

2 EEAR 2,416,528
Accumulated amortisation and impairment EFf @B REE
Balance at 1 January 2016 R2016F 1718 2 &8 (2,330,455)
Amortisation expense BiEMX (7,470)
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss RERBERAEEBIE (8,460)
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences [EREZRTE 152,867
Balance at 31 December 2016 and MR2016F12831H &

1 January 2017 201751818 2 &5 (2,193,518)
Amortisation expense BSH > (6,471)
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss REGDERZREEE (58,239)
Effect of foreign currency exchange differences ERERETE (158,300)
Balance at 31 December 2017 R2017F12 4311

2 EEER (2,416,528)
Carrying amounts REE
Balance at 31 December 2017 M20179F12H318

2B _
Balance at 31 December 2016 MR2016F12A31H

2 EE R 60,580
Note: PR 5E
The amount of concession rights represents the value in use of contractual ez @B DRNIBRE L ENBERAR ([REE

rights stated in the cooperation agreements that RIIRE L ERTAR A
Al (transliterated as Shenzhen Huancai Puda Technology Company Limited®)
("Huancai Puda”) entered into with several lottery issuing centres for providing
software system and technical services. At the end of each reporting period,
the concession rights are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment.

ud English name for identification purpose only

E] R ZARRENRBESMYREITHOL
ZEEBBEMRE RN EREER RERSHEAR
AT S SRR AR R AT S RORLE R 8 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

15. CONCESSION RIGHTS (continued)

Note: (Continued)

The carrying amount of concession rights is amortised on a straight-line
method over the period over three to eight years in accordance with the
terms of the cooperation agreements.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the management of the Group
has performed an impairment assessment on the lottery business's CGU
which has reflected the reassessment of the management as well as the
latest business environment and market conditions in the PRC in which the
lottery business’s CGU operates. As at 31 December 2017, the recoverable
amount of the concession rights was assessed by the directors with
reference to the professional valuation as at 31 December 2017 performed
by an independent professionally qualified valuer. The recoverable amount
of the lottery business's CGU has been determined based on value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on most recent
financial budgets approved by the management after taking into account the
operation environment and market conditions at that point of time covering
a five-year period with zero growth rate (2016: 10% per annum), and pre-tax
discount rate of 21% (2016: 33.15%). The key assumptions for the value in
use calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth in revenue and
direct costs during the periods. The management estimates discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk
specific to the CGU. In performing the impairment testing, the directors of the
Company have made reference to a valuation performed by an independent
professionally qualified valuer. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group recognised impairment loss of approximately HK$58,239,000 (2016:
HK$8,460,000) in relation to concession rights allocated to the CGU associated
with the lottery business.

15. B REE 2

MisE (&)

R ERZIRAEREAFHRZ RFREREN=E
INEZ BAPR k3 -

HZE20177F12R31BIEFE - AEEERECHRMER
BzaHTEURTR(REEB 2R eELEBNEERN
) EHAERERTSRACEEER 2RCELSE
RLEITRE RS - R20175F12A8318 » 1SR4 2 A ik
BGHECEFL2EHB LT ELERMBERMR2017F12
AB#ETZEEBEMELTH FEEKBRSELASE
AT E S BEIBERERBENEEEE - ZaTEAER
EREEEMIACL2ZER (RERLFHHE) OKEZER
BERMRAMARE AV BBEENRSRERA - BRX
BT (20165 : FF10%) LB ATEE I K B21% (20164 -
33.15%) c T EHEAEEZF BB HEEEHM AR
KR EREEXANARE ERESSHMRE
R ERRREEEREEE EAMMSTEURASE
EBNZFERR  ETRENRE  ARRESELE
B BXEAERMGEMEL ZHE - REE2017F12831
BIEEE AEERIEEGVZEBEUIREELE
7 5 BT 4 4 4 T SRR (B /5 18 4958,239,0007 T (20164 -
8,460,000/ 7T) °

i}

16. INVENTORIES 16. 78
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHT
Raw materials R+ 991 853
Work in progress wEIRE 326 58
Finished goods O 116 -
1,433 911
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

7. E5 R HMEWFE

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TAETT

Trade receivables B 5 WFIE 714 -

Less: allowance for doubtful debts for W B S ERGERREE

trade receivables (666) -

48 -

Deposits and other receivables e & H bW GRIE 4,199 3,403
Less: allowance for doubtful debts for B e R E A U R RER B

deposits and other receivables - (2,000)

4,199 1,403

Prepayments B RIE 745 1,113

Total trade and other receivables B 5 K H e ERIA 4,992 2,516

Trade receivables comprise of provision of financial
technology services, sale of lottery equipment and provision
of management, marketing, and operating services for
lottery system and lottery halls.

The credit terms granted to customers are varied and
are generally the result of negotiation between individual
customer and the Group. 1% per day is charged on overdue
trade receivables in respect of provision of financial
technology services and no interest is charged on overdue
trade receivables in respect of sale of smart wearable
devices, sale of lottery equipment, provision of management,
marketing, and operating services for lottery system and
lottery halls and provision of sports training services.

BHRWFEBRERHESBBMERE  HE
TERBLIRHEEEZRERE  £HRBL
FHRHEREEERS

BYEFPZEEMTRABEIEREP &
AEBZHAER - RHEBMERB 2B
HIE S RUKIEWIE 1% E - MEE
BRFEARE HEXERE REHERER
MEE BHRBEEEHEARZERY
R EIRRY < BB 5 EYHIAT
YRR B »
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The following is an analysis of trade receivables by age,
presented based on the respective revenue recognition
dates:

17.

ESNEMEWRKIE 2

AT TiiRERE D 28 S RKHIBZ DT -
TizE R ER A M2

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

0 - 30 days 0%30H 27 -

31 - 60 days 31E60H 11 .

61— 90 days 61E90H 6 -

Over 90 days 90H A 4 -

48 -

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

THExT FHET

Neither past due nor impaired BT 4% 260 B 71 R R (B - -
Past due but not impaired B i B8 KR E

- overdue by 1 - 30 days —#HI1E308 27 -

- overdue by 31 — 60 days —#HI31260H 11 -

- overdue by 61 — 90 days —#Hi61E90H 6 -

- overdue 90 days or above —EHI0H s LA 4 -

48 -

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
relate to customers for whom there is no recent history of
default.

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see
above for aged analysis) which are past due at the end of
the reporting period for which the Group has not recognised
an allowance for doubtful debts because there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances
nor does it have a legal right to offset against any amounts
owed by the Group to the counterparties.

B 48 780 5 7T Rk (6L 2 55 B MO R TR BT BRI
BENTHRZIEFAR -

EXBBEZEZRUFARENREHRE
BEm AR E W AR ERRERE (RETIE
EERWESE R AR INBAR(EAT =)
2B REROTZ2R LX) - KAEEW AR
ZERBRATMERRIEMIERERR
M MEAAEEBEREFH 2T MEEE
iz BIRER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. ES R HMEWKIE &)
(Continued)
MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR EZRURERRBEZSH
DOUBTFUL DEBTS FOR TRADE RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHT
1 January 1H1H - -
Impairment loss recognised on trade BE 5 EYBGRIERER 2 B EEE
receivables 666 -
31 December 12A31H 666 -
During the year ended 31 December 2017, an impairment HE2017F12A3MBLEFE  Eom 2K

loss was made on trade receivables based on a review of
outstanding amounts on regular basis when collection of
the amount is in doubt. Trade receivable of approximately
HK$666,000 was impaired as the balance was past due
and the collection of the amount was in doubt. The trade
receivable was in relation to the provision of financial
technology services. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over this balance.

MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR
DOUBTFUL DEBTS FOR DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

ElE A EER  REHSREESHZEHE
EREHRERYGRIRELRERE - 25 EK
HIAHKI666,0008 TERIE W RESEHRER
Hime Bz A WO~ #E - LB 5 EKK
HERHESBMBRRE AR AEEILEH
SRR A TAEMLEMIBREERE -

RERHMEBEWRERRBE 22D

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

1 January 1H1H 2,000 2,000
Amount written off as uncollectible HSE AE RN B 2 &5 (2,000) -
31 December 12A31H - 2,000
hEEBERERAT o 2017FF8% 139
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

18. AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED
COMPANY

Name of Company
AR ER

18.

B —EEERTZME

Highest
balance
outstanding
during the
year
FRES
REEHE 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET

bR R 2 (E B R AR AR

The amount due is unsecured, interest bearing 10% per
annum and repayable on demand.

Note:

Mr. Sun Haitao, a substantial shareholder, the chairman and executive
director of the Company has beneficial interests in 1t 5 HE B 65 22 {2 B 2R i
AR FL

19. AMOUNT DUE FROM A NON-
CONTROLLING INTEREST OF A
SUBSIDIARY

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

19.

574 574 -

ZAR AT EEAR - BFRTE10% R ARERE

Wi -

ARATLTERER  EEFRATESHBEBAERIERIER
BEESXBEMERIRA AR Bl

BURHEBAR ZFERER 2K
"

ZFIATEER 28 NRARERER -

20. CASH AND BANK BALANCES/PLEDGED 20 e RBITES EBETER

BANK DEPOSIT

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

F&T FHT

Cash at banks and in hand RITEBRLRFHERS 59,173 24,033

Less: Pledged bank deposit B BEEBIRITER - (216)

Cash and cash equivalents HeRkReZEE 59,173 23,817
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

20. CASH AND BANK BALANCES/PLEDGED

21.

BANK DEPOSIT (continued)

Pledged bank deposit represents deposit pledged to bank
for obtaining the corporate card services as at 31 December
2016.

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The pledged bank deposit carried fixed
interest rate of 0.40% per annum for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Included in cash at banks and in hand of the Group is
approximately HK$12,172,000 (2016: HK$612,000) of bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and placed with
banks in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20. A& RMITHES EARTER

(%)

R2016F 128318 | RTEFERIE ARG
TERREMAFBITER ZFK -

RITEBRUAT BRITREENERIUL B X
MEB - BE2016F12A31H IEFE - KR
1175 5K 2 B F 7 & 530.40%

AEBZRTEBRFEERSY A8
12,172,000 7T (2016%F : 612,000 7T) 2 iR
THEHBEUARB (AR D FELFHRD
PR ZRIT ARBETSEBELBRAREME
B MERBEPBEIMNEE S REE BT EIEH &
SNEBERT  NEBEABIBEEREINE
EBZRITHARSEBRABHEMEE -

21. EZ REMENKIE

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Trade payables B S EMNIE 98 3

Other payables and accruals HihENFIEREFTER 7,683 7,489
Accrued salaries and other benefits FE & E BN I H 4th B 4@ A

in kind 1,064 284

Total trade and other payables B REMBENFIBERE 8,845 7,776
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables based
on invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

21.

ESRHMENFIE @)

RBEEHER  EFRNRBERERZAH
ZHREOAT

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FHET

0 - 30 days 0&30H 24 -
31 - 60 days 31E260H 5 -
61— 90 days 61£90H 6 -
Over 90 days FBiE90H 63 3
98 3

AMOUNTS DUE TO AN INTERMEDIATE
HOLDING COMPANY/A NON-
CONTROLLING INTEREST OF A
SUBSIDIARY

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

In August 2010, the Company issued approximately
664,580,000 (after adjusted for the share consolidation
as effected on 27 February 2012) zero-coupon HK dollar
denominated convertible bonds to Mr. Leung Ngai Man
(“Mr. Leung"”), a former substantial shareholder, former
chairman and former executive director of the Company.
The convertible bonds have a maturity period of 5 years
from the issue date and can be convertible into one ordinary
share of the Company at HK$0.005 each for every HK$1.20
convertible bonds at the holder’'s option (after adjusted for
the share consolidation as effected on 27 February 2012).
Conversion may occur at any time between 27 August 2010
and 26 August 2015.

22.

23.

FENPEZERAEHWEARZ
FIERER A

AR EER - R B RARERER -

AR R &

MR201068 7 * RARIAA QA EZRE -
A EFRAATEETRR A ([REE]D)
EE1T#9664,580,0001 (FA20124F2 27 B £ %K
ZRMDEHAER) BLAETETRRE
HonBMRESFABITEHRBTABHATF
HFAARERSH1.208 T RRES
ZERR0.0058 L 2 B IR AERAR —KRE
AR (ER20129E2 A27 B £ 2 B 1D & BEFR
FHE) o A AR R20105E8 527 H £20154F
8A26H EAf Z (E A RS 3 T H.#8 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

23. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The convertible bonds contain two components: liability and
equity elements. The equity element on initial recognition
was presented in equity as part of the “convertible bonds
equity reserve”. The effective interest rate of the liability
component for the convertible bonds on initial recognition
was 17.35% per annum.

The Company entered into a supplemental deed (the
“Supplemental Deed”) dated 24 August 2015 executed
between the Company and Mr. Leung, pursuant to which the
Company and Mr. Leung agreed to extend the maturity date
of the convertible bonds for 5 years from the date falling on
the fifth year to the date falling on the tenth year from the
date of issue of the convertible bonds. The Supplemental
Deed was approved by independent shareholders at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 3
November 2015.

The convertible bonds contain two components upon the
extension: liability and equity elements. The equity element
on recognition was presented in equity as part of the
“convertible bonds equity reserve”. The effective interest
rate of the liability component for the convertible bonds on
recognition is 12.73% per annum.

In January 2016, the Company early redeemed 8,400,000
convertible bonds (after adjusted for the share consolidation
as effected on 27 February 2012) at a total consideration
of HK$10,080,000 from Mr. Leung, pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the convertible bonds. The difference
between the redemption amount and the total carrying
amounts of liability component and equity component
amounting to approximately HK$389,000 has been credited
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and amounting to approximately
HK$258,000 has been debited to the accumulated losses,
respectively.

23. AR ESF @)

AIRBRE SR M E D AR BENERIER -
VIF R IR B N ERAIE AR E
FiEmiER ] 2 — 8D - YIS RERE R E
HFRERNDZERNERSFB17.35% -

ARREIARRE ((HARE] - AAFHE
REEN2015F8H24B % F) » Bt - AR
ARREERERATMEES ZHHBEHE
AMEESFETESAREFEAERESF
EmTHEER - #RZIEEB L IERN2015
FNMABERITZARABRREI RS L4t
JE ©

AmkEFRIEREHMEOAR : BER
BEamIAR - RS EDZRE RERAT
tEIA R ES R E] 2 — 810 - 15§
REABRREFBESRND 2ERENETRFR
12.73% °

R2016F1 A BB TR ES 2 ERRIGE
% A )[R 25T A HR F R [918,400,00015 A
R & R (B F201262 A27 B £ 2 B
AOFFTAEE) - A {8 510,080,000 T - &
EeEEgEOAERSHBERABE S
EH#)389,000 B LE T ARG BR R EMEE
U AR 2 #9258,000/8 L E 5T A REHEEF o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

23. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

In April 2016, the Company early redeemed 12,500,000
convertible bonds (after adjusted for the share consolidation
as effected on 27 February 2012) at a total consideration
of HK$15,000,000 from Mr. Leung, pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the convertible bonds. The difference
between the redemption amount and the total carrying
amounts of liability component and equity component
amounting to approximately HK$257,000 has been credited
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and amounting to approximately
HK$192,000 has been credited to the accumulated losses,
respectively.

In June 2016, the Company early redeemed 9,170,000
convertible bonds (after adjusted for the share consolidation
as effected on 27 February 2012) at a total consideration
of HK$11,004,000 from Mr. Leung, pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the convertible bonds. The difference
between the redemption amount and the total carrying
amounts of liability component and equity component
amounting to approximately HK$10,000 has been credited
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and amounting to approximately
HK$510,000 has been credited to the accumulated losses,
respectively.

Imputed interest expenses of approximately HK$5,593,000
(2016: HK$5,650,000) has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in respect of the convertible bonds
during the year ended 31 December 2017. No convertible
bonds were converted during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.

As at 31 December 2017, the outstanding principal amount
of the convertible bonds amounted to approximately
HK$68,016,000 (2016: HK$68,016,000), which could be
convertible into 56,680,000 (2016: 56,680,000) ordinary
shares of the Company.

23. AR EF ©)

R20165F4 R - R % A] # BE 75 2 16 3 K 1k
- RQE AR S 4R E12,500,00017 7]
B E SR (20122 A27 B £ 2 I th
A pFPTIAE) - (8 715,000,000/ 7T - f&
ClemEaElnMERfOEREEZE
RRAI257,0008 TE A ABREBRRE L EMEE
WA K 49192,0008 TTE T A REHEES ©

2016F6 A + BB AT R IR & FH 2 R K K
- RARAREERTERY,170,00017 A
B EH R (201262 A27 8 £z B
G OFFTAE) - BB /11,004,000 7T - &
CleEaERHRERDSHEREE L ZE
BEX10,0008 TEFF AL A Bm L EMEE
WA K K #9510,000% LB 5 A RHEES -

HE2017F12A3MBEFEE BEHEATHRRE
&% 2 51 B F X #95,593,0007% 7T (2016%F :
5,650,000 #7m) ERérABE R EMEEI
AKRER - RE Z=20174F &2016%F12A31H8
IEFE  BETRRESFERR -

M2017F 128318 - AR EH M KREE
K& B %4 568,016,000/ 7T (20164 -
68,016,000/ Jr) * A] 8% 556,680,0000%
(2016%F : 56,680,000/% ) A A &) @AY -
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24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities balances
recognised and movements thereon during the current and
prior years:

24.

ELEBBEEE

UTRREMRBEFERRBZIEIEELN
HEBEERREES

concession Convertible

rights bonds Total

BERERE mBaREs st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FAT FAET

At 1 January 2016 20161818 20,381 7,338 27,719

Recognised directly to equity BEGTAER - (2,430) (2,430)

Credit to profit or loss sFAEZR (5,236) (933) (6,169)
At 31 December 2016 and R2016F12 8318 &

1 January 2017 20171 A1H 15,145 3,975 19,120

Credit to profit or loss FFAES (15,145) (923) (16,068)

At 31 December 2017 M2017%12H831H = 3,052 3,052

Under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC,
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in respect
of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January
2008 onwards. At 31 December 2017 and 2016, no deferred
tax liabilities for withholding tax have been recognised as the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries incurred accumulated losses for
the period since 1 January 2008.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$13,764,000 (2016:
HK$15,261,000) arising from subsidiaries operating outside
Hong Kong which is available for setting off against future
taxable profit of that subsidiary is due to expire within one to
five years and estimated unused tax losses of approximately
HK$51,069,000 (2016: HK$51,053,000) available for
offset against future profits that may be carried forward
indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the estimated unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

PERBERERDR o 2017FF K

RIEH B EFREHE - B2008F1H1H

e BB E A R BRELZ & NS IR &

B EGMIET - BR20174F K2016F12 431

B BRAEE 2+ R EBRA R E2008F 1A

THREIMAEE RBEIE - QA TENR
RIEEFIBEEE -

RBEHER  AEEFREZSHEE BN
MR E 2B AR Z et RB AR IEE
18 #913,764,0007% 7t (20165 : 15,261,000/
JT ) AIEEEZME R R 2 RIRERB A
F-R—Z2RFRER MAKBEHMGETE
&) F B 7A B 18 #951,069,00058 7T (20164F :
51,053,000/ 7T) - Al H AT MR EA 45 8 2
RHCHEF o AR BETE AT AR 5 F AR - i)
WER G RDARBEEERRAECHIEE
E o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

25. SHARE CAPITAL - ORDINARY SHARES

146

25. RA-EEBR

Number Share
of shares capital
R &R fig 2%
‘000 HK$'000
F i FAT
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, #2016F1 818 ~ 20165F12 8
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017, 318 ~ 2017118 &
ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each 2017F12A318 - B8R mAEE
0.005% 7T 2 & i % 20,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREBE:
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and M2016F 1418 ~ 20165124
1 January 2017, ordinary shares of 318 K2017F1 818 » K&
HK$0.005 each M {E0.0057%8 7T 2 & 38 i 3,120,035 15,600
Conversion of non-redeemable convertible AN ] BB B A AR B T A
preferred shares (Note (i) (PR 3EG0)) 1,003,333 5,017
Exercise of share options (Note (ii)) 17150 B A R (B RE(I)) 116,000 580
Issue of new ordinary shares (Note (iii) BATHTE AR (BT EEGi) 390,000 1,950
At 31 December 2017, ordinary shares of MR2017F12A31H - GlREE
HK$0.005 each 0.005% 7T 2 F B 4,629,368 23,147
Notes: B 3E

0

On 11 April 2017, Mr. Leung and 51RENPIN.COM INC. (“5TRENPIN")
had entered into a convertible preferred share purchase agreement
pursuant to which Mr. Leung agreed to sell, and 51RENPIN agreed
to acquire, 1,003,333,333 convertible preferred shares at the
consideration of HK$82,273,333.31, being HK$0.082 per convertible
preferred share. It was further stated in the convertible preferred
share purchase agreement that 51RENPIN shall, immediately upon
completion of the sale and purchase of the convertible preferred
shares, exercise its conversion rights attaching to the convertible
preferred shares to convert all the convertible preferred shares
into ordinary shares. Completion of the convertible preferred share
purchase agreement took place on the same day.

Immediately after the completion of the sale and purchase of the
convertible preferred shares and pursuant to the terms of the
convertible preferred share purchase agreement, the Company
received a notice of conversion from 51RENPIN in respect of the
exercise of conversion rights attaching to all the convertible preferred
shares of the Company. As a result of the exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the 1,003,333,333 convertible preferred shares,
1,003,333,333 ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each in the capital of the
Company were allotted and issued to 51RENPIN on 12 April 2017 (Note
26).

@)

M2017F48118 » % 4 R51RENPIN.COM
INC. ([ 51RENPIN J) 5] 37 7] #2 % (8 5% &% UK B8 153
FoBM o 2R AERE LS MSTIRENPING &
U f%1,003,333,333k AJ kB R - RE A
82,273,333.317 7T + BN A% 7] 44 A% {8 4E A%0.0827%5
TC o ATRESE R E G EE —SE - REREE
F AR MBS A FE A& © STRENPINGE 1T {5 AT 42 A%
BRI 2 HIRE - g2 B RRE RN
RETMAR - TRRELRBEHBEERRBZEX -

REFEEE A RRE LR E T RIETIRRE
P BR U B 1 5 2 1R - AR A Al S 1RENPINZ .
BB - BEITEARR R IRRE RIS
Wit o 171,003,333, 3330% AT 4 A% 8 4 A P
2 R AR RIRRA R SR EE0.00578 T2
1,003,333,3330% & @AY B H2017F4 A 128 BEL % &
%17 F51RENPIN (Fi3126) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

25. SHARE CAPITAL - ORDINARY SHARES
(Continued)

26.

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iif)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, subscription rights attaching
to the share options to subscribe for 16,000,000 and 100,000,000
shares of the Company were exercised at the subscription price of
HK$0.087 per share and HK$0.105 per share respectively (Note 27),
resulting in the issuance of 116,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.005
each for a total cash consideration of approximately HK$11,892,000.

On 12 April 2017, the Company and 51RENPIN entered into a
subscription agreement (as amended by a side letter dated 23 April
2017 and a second side letter dated 16 June 2017) (the “Subscription
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company had conditionally agreed
to allot and issue, and 51RENPIN had conditionally agreed to subscribe
for 390,000,000 shares at the consideration of HK$31,980,000, being
HK$0.082 per share (the "Subscription”).

The resolution proposed at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 14 July 2017 (the "EGM") regarding the Subscription
and the granting of the specific mandate was duly passed by the
independent shareholders of the Company by way of poll at the EGM.

On 19 July 2017, 390,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each in
the capital of the Company were allotted and issued to 51RENPIN
at HK$0.082 per share. The exercise gave rise to an aggregate net
proceed of approximately HK$31,961,000.

SHARE CAPITAL - NON-REDEEMABLE
CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED SHARES

25. RA—EBER &)

M (&)

(i) REZE2017F12A3NBILFE - BREMK 2R
8% 7K §]16,000,000/% K2.100,000,0000% 17 = 772 B8 4
LA 3% B £70.08778 7T I & B A% 19 0.10578 7T 2 32 &
BRI ETE (M 7E27) - B % % 47116,000,0008%
HR%0.0058 702 LA - BR(B47511,892,0007%
TTo

(i) F2017F4 8128 « AR AJE5TRENPINGT 37 72 8 17
# (BB A2017F4 8238 2 Mk B #1/A20174F
6A6B Z B MR MLMERT) ([RBWHZ#E]D - &
It - AR B GERE R # R EITM51RENPINA 1§
% A E R EE390,000,0008% A% 15 - A& &31,980,000
BT BNERAR10.08258 T ([REEE]) -

RRBR2017F7A148 BT 2 lREFEIAE ([H
RERAE]) LREFERBIERT L FREE
ZRBRCHABRERERIARS LHEAD BB R LA
BERRFNERBB -

20179678198 + A &) i% 48 #390,000,0008% &
% E{E0.005/% 7T 2 ¥ i@ A% B 12 5 #%0.082/%5 T AL 3
K Z 1T F5IRENPIN © 3Z BT 5 B 4 FT 15 5K I8 )F 58
4 $£49/531,961,000/8 7T °

26. RA— A B E A I8 5t IR

Number Share
of shares capital
G &R [
‘000 HK$'000
T A% T T
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, R2016F1A1H ~ 20164
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 12H31H ~ 2017F1R18 &
preferred shares of HK$0.005 each 20175128318 - SR EE
0.005/8 7T 2 1B 5T % 2,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREBE:
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and MR2016F1H18 ~ 20165127
1 January 2017, preferred shares of HK$0.005 318 Kk20177F1H18 » &
each A {E0.0057%8 7T 2 18 7 i 1,003,333 5,017
Conversion of non-redeemable convertible HI|A A E B ] AR E LR
preferred shares (Note 25) (Bt 5£25) (1,003,333) (5,017)
At 31 December 2017, preferred shares of R2017F12A31H » BREE
HK$0.005 each 0.0057% 7T 2 18 %t % = =
hEREERERAR o 2017FFR 147
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted on 29 June 2007 for employee compensation.

The directors may at their absolute discretion, invite
any person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants (“Eligible Participants”) to take up options to
subscribe for shares:

. any employee (whether full time or part time, including
any directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which any member
of the Group holds an equity interest;

. any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company,
any subsidiary or any Invested Entity;

. any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

. any customer of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

. any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

o any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

o any adviser (professional or otherwise), consultant,
individual or entity who in the opinion of the directors
of the Company has contributed or will contribute to
the growth and development of the Group;

o any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group; and

. for the purposes of the Scheme, the offer may be made
to any company wholly owned by one or more Eligible
Participants.

URGB XN Z2R5

AR B R2007F6 A 29 B R4 — IR BB AR AT &
(I DIERREBEHM -

EXA2RNBERBENANEMERZA
T(TAERSEE]) 2 MERESE - B
MR LARIB AR

e ARFEHEMHBARSAKEE
MKERRAFARA w2 EMER
(REERD ZEFEE (BR2EuK
KB BREMES):

o  ARAE - EANBARSEMAREER
ZEMNEE (BRERIFVTEERBILFE
HITESE)

o AEEEMKERFREMKEERZ
T EmaRBHEER ;

o AEEEMKEARREMKREER L
EAER

s MAKRETMRKERAHTANRERR
M - BRIEM MR 2 EW
ALTHER:

o AEBEFEMKERRNEMKEEEZ
ERIR R KA EEE R K E R R SR
REBEBMBITZ2ANER 2EMFE
A

s ARAEFAR/UAKEZERRER
BEHBERIBELERZ T RER
(BXFHEMER)  HBA  ERLE

B -
Az

s BBALLE EHBBENHMEBL
B ASKE 2 BHRMIERCFEHERK
AIREVE N BB 2 [ E b AR Bl SRR Bl 2
HE R

A AERNR-BHEEE

o  BEEME
HEZEFAZNAREELY -

BR2d
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fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

(Continued)

The share option scheme became effective on 2 July 2007
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from its date of adoption on 29 June 2007.

Under the Scheme, the maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes adopted by the Group shall
not exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in
issue from time to time. No options may be granted under
the Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted by
the Group if the grant of such option will result in the limit
being exceeded. Subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders, the aggregate number of the Company’s
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 30% of the Company'’s shares in issue from time
to time.

The total number of shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all options excluding, options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of this Scheme and any
other option schemes of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of passing
the relevant resolution adopting the Scheme without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders.

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 27. U@ X 2R 5 (@)

BRIEE B EUESIEE]  BREEER
20077828 4% - WS M E R4 B H (A
20076 H29R ) Bt T FHARI A B K -

R8> HEt8IRARERA 2T EAM
BREAERLZMECHITERTEZE
kg RITEER TRTZ&ESBRNEE T
BHBABARFTED HEITHRAZ30% i %
HERBRESERBLRE  BITFERIE
T8 S AN SR B BR A 2 T f) EL At BB AR M AT 81 1%
HIEAE - BRIEJBIA QA REAAE - TR
RiFstE AR A Z EME B RES SR
HZ B B &EITIEEARTTE BB IEET(ER
A TRITZARARDEBRTNSBEBAR T
TS B BT D 230%

RIRUL A& M A S B E b B S 2
BRREZAARBRE(TREBECRNE) &
TTERARERBETIRNDEES KTEE
BEBARRMAGFIRBREACDEITRD
210% @ MB\AEFESARB PR ZHAE
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 27. UB#®B X 2R3 (&)

150

(Continued)

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options and the options granted
under any other share option scheme of the Group (including
both exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company for the time being. Where any further
grant of options to a grantee under the Scheme would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and proposed to be granted to such person
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Group in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such further grant representing in aggregate over 1%
of the shares in issue, such further grant must be separately
approved by shareholders of the Company in general
meeting with such grantee and his associates abstaining
from voting.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the share
option scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to each of any eligible persons (including those
cancelled, exercised and outstanding options), in any twelve
months period up to the date of the latest grant shall not
exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in issue provided
that the number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted to each
of the independent non-executive directors or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates in the twelve months period up to the date of
such grant in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s shares
in issue and with a value in excess of HK$5 million must
be approved in advance by the Company’s independent
shareholders. Any further grant of options in excess of
such limit must be separately approved by shareholders in
general meeting in accordance with the requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules.

EEAM+—EAREAR  RERENIREAR
SEHETMEMBEREAERTEARAZE
Pt (RS ITESR R ARITRE 2 BRE) BT
EmETRAEEITZRMDEBTFEBEN
NAEREBITRAZ1% ° MR &R
BRAE—FROBRE SEHEREE—
SROEBREARL(BFEZB) t —EAH
M EREG 8 A S B A HAb B AES
ERTMERRTREBALTZMEBERE (2
BETE - SR ARTTE 2 BRRE) #T
EmEHT RS THTZRNDEE & HER
BEETERM21%  MBBRELARKRRX
ELRTRBARARRRE - EZARA
LREBMBALTANERE -

EEM+—EASREREE L AH  RIE
BB At 8 AN R R A BB A A1 8 M
AEA—EEBALTREZERE (%2
i BITEREARITE B ETEM
BOIMBTEROTZBEON&ZSE8E @ T5EE
RRAREEITRN Z1%  HRERBAZRE
BREAHLEt —EABERARBEM—
B FRATESTHETERRIMEMEES
BZBMBEBAIELLETROZAABRE
BOTEMBEBTRETETZRODBBBAN
N AEIEEITRH0.1% & B & i #85,000,0008
TE BRESARBBIBRRZELME -
EAER LB ZREZBRERREGEM
ERBRAZHAEERRARE L2 BIMNRER
RHLAE o
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(Continued)

The offer of a grant of share options might be accepted
in writing within 21 days from the date of the offer. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the directors, and should not be later than ten years from
the date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date
of the Scheme, if earlier.

The subscription price is equal to the higher of (i) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company; (ii) the closing
price per share of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; and
(iii) the average closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

The fair value of share options granted is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income taking into account the probability that the options
will vest over the vesting period. Upon the exercise of the
options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by the
Company as additional share capital at the nominal value of
the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the
Company in the share premium account. At the time when
the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses. Options which lapsed, if any, prior to
their exercise date are deleted from the outstanding options.

All equity-settled share-based payments will be settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
repurchase or settle the options.

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 27. U@ X 2R 5 (@)

BB EOTEEHABEN21AR
DA Y S o B AR 44T 6 M A e
EEEE  ETSERBREEH A BE
+ESEHBE A B ARRERE) -

RBEREENUT=E2&"%E : )\ ARA
PR EE ¢ (NP H B HIAR R B AR 0 7B 52
e RRERARERETE  RINEEE
H B A EE R ERB AT HRERMRA
BERFHEHE -

Bt RBRENEBHAKEE 28
EREEREZ A FERERREME2EE
ARMER - ABREEITER FIARTZR
0 AR A BRI D EERT A SBINEA -
BRITEEBL RN EEHRBEH ARG
AR s B R o BRETT R - TR
REHTER I CESERERNEE -2
B I BOR WSk B R B D R AT R - 5t
AIRERERETRRAZSESERERG
BiE-RITEBRMAERR 2 ERE(WE)
B AR TT {6 8 B i R MRS o

FIT 76 DA RS #68 B A B 32 A5 22 R I G LA R 2
Eff - AREY B EARAEEREEABLER
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(Continued)

Details of specific categories of share options are as follows:

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

Bz ABERFBOT

Weighted
average
Exercise fair value at
Option type Date of grant Exercise period price grant date
REEAH
Z 15
B REER wmE A THERR™ TEE AFE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
2007 (a) 9 July 2007 9 July 2007 to 29 June 2017 1.4250* 0.4540*
20074 (a) 20077 A9H 20077 A9B 2201796 A29H
2007 (b) 22 August 2007 22 August 2007 to 29 June 2017 2.0300* 0.6375*
20074 (b) 20078 A22H 200798 A22H £2017F6A29H
2008 10 July 2008 10 July 2008 to 29 June 2017 1.3280* 0.3555*
20084 200847 A10H 200847 A10H 220176 A29H
2013 10 October 2013 10 October 2013 to 29 June 2017 0.0870 0.0261
20134 20134108108 20139108108 £2017F6 A29H
2014 (a) 25 March 2014 25 March 2014 to 29 June 2017 0.3640 0.2171
20144 (a) 201443 A25H 201443 A25H £2017F 6 A29H
2014 (b) 26 March 2014 26 March 2014 to 29 June 2017 0.3650 0.2048
20144 (b) 20143 A26H 2014F3 268 £2017F6 A29H
2014 (c) 10 July 2014 10 July 2014 to 29 June 2017 0.2800 0.0726
20144 (c) 20147 A10H 20147 A10H 220176 A29H
2015 (a) 27 May 2015 27 May 2015 to 29 June 2017 0.2900 0.1484
20154 (a) 2015 5A27H 20155 A27H 220176 A29H
2015 (b) 4 June 2015 4 June 2015 to 29 June 2017 0.2700 0.1210
20154 (b) 201596 H4H 2015F6 A48 £2017F6 A29H
2016 6 May 2016 6 May 2016 to 29 June 2017 0.1050 0.0406
20164 2016%F5H6H 2016568 £2017F6 A29H

The Company measures the fair value of share options
granted to consultant by reference to the fair values of
services received.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

(Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted to employees
during the year ended 31 December 2016 were determined
using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model. Where
relevant, the expected life used in the model has been
adjusted based on management’s best estimate for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions (including
the probability of meeting market conditions attached to the
option), and behavioural considerations. Expected volatility
is based on the historical volatility of the Company’s share
price and comparable companies’ share price, adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on publicly
available information.

100,000,000 share options were granted under the Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the share options granted during the year ended 31
December 2016 are based on the directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of
certain subjective assumptions.

INPUTS INTO THE MODEL

27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 27. U@ X 2R 5 (@)

REE2016F12A3NMALFERETRECE
IR 2 A E T AN 7 —&F B T IR
BEEXET TEABLT CREEREE
ZEEMFTMARZEXNTRA 2B FH
VAR BR AP 8858 « 1TE R (B IEEBUE I
FRMI T 3B &1 2 AT RE 1) RITRZEREEZ &
Z -EHERDIERARFARERATELR
NEIREFEL KBS MTE - WIKBARER
AN B 2 MBS LA -

HE2016F12A31H L5 E - RIFEFEE L
100,000,00017 & AR # -

HERE016412A318 L FE RN 2 BR
RATENEAYSERBROENEEY
BfEfEst - BREZEERE TEHER
TAZEME

AREXZ21EE
Option type
2016
BREER
20164

Grant date share price

Exercise price TEE
Expected volatility T8 B 1R
Exercise multiple ITEEE

B B HIR(E

HK$0.10407% 7T
HK$0.10507% 7T
98.696%

2.719

Risk-free interest rate
Expected dividend yield

B BB M R
AHRLE R

PRABRZERERATE

0.314%
NilZ
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 27. U@ X 2R 5 (@)

(Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TEREEFALRLBEREZD)
share options during the year:

Granted Exercised Lapsed
Outstanding during during during Outstanding
Option type at 1/1/2017 the year the year the year at 31/12/2017
020174 020174
1A1R 12A31H
BREER i RATE FREH FRITHE FREK e R AT 2
2007 (a)
20074 (a) 9,600,000* - - (9,600,000)* -
2007 (b)
20074 (b) 8,200,000* - - (8,200,000)* -
2008
2008%F 9,200,000* - - (9,200,000)* -
2013
20134 16,000,000 - (16,000,000) - -
2014 (a)
20144 (a) 32,000,000 - - (32,000,000) -
2014 (b)
20144 (D) 2,700,000 - - (2,700,000) -
2014 (c)
20144 (c) 20,000,000 - - (20,000,000) -
2015 (a)
20154 (a) 66,000,000 - - (66,000,000) -
2015 (b)
20154 (b) 10,000,000 - - (10,000,000) -
2016
2016%F 100,000,000 - (100,000,000) - -
273,700,000 - (116,000,000) (157,700,000) -

Exercisable at the end of the year -
RERAITRE

Weighted average exercise price HK$0.34537 7T HK$0.1025%7C  HK$0.523974 7T -

MmEFHITEE
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27. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 27. U@ X 2R 5 (@)

(Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options during prior year:

TERBEEFARABEREZES -

Granted Exercised Lapsed
Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Option type at 1/1/2016 the year the year the year at 31/12/2016
H2016%F H2016%F
1A1H 12A31H
RS i RATHE FRFZE FRTE FREX e R AT £
2007 (a)
20074 (a) 9,600,000* - - - 9,600,000*
2007 (b)
20074 (b) 8,200,000* - - - 8,200,000*
2008
20084 9,200,000* - - - 9,200,000*
2013
20134 16,000,000 - - - 16,000,000
2014 (a)
20144 (a) 32,000,000 - - - 32,000,000
2014 (b)
20144 (b) 2,700,000 - - - 2,700,000
2014 (c)
20144 (c) 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
2015 (a)
2015%(a) 66,000,000 - - - 66,000,000
2015 (b)
20155 (D) 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
2016
2016%F - 100,000,000 - - 100,000,000
173,700,000 100,000,000 - - 273,700,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 273,700,000
REKRATE
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.4836/57C  HK$0.10507% 7T - - HK$0.3453% 7T

MEFHITEE

116,000,000 (2016: Nil) share options have been exercised
under the Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2017.

REE2017F128318 1L EE - BBz 2817
18116,000,00017 (20164F : &) BE PR #E o
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(Continued)

Options granted are fully vested at the date of grant.
During the year ended 31 December 2016, approximately
HK$406,000 of equity-settled share-based payments to
employees has been included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
corresponding amount of which has been credited to share
options reserve. No liabilities were recognised on the
equity-settled share-based payment transactions.

The fair value of the share options granted to suppliers of
service amounted to approximately HK$3,655,000 has been
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2016, the corresponding amount of which has
been credited to share options reserve.

The total consideration received during the year ended 31
December 2016 from grant of share options amounted to
HK$4.

All share options have been accounted for under HKFRS
2. No share option was outstanding at the end of the year
(2016: outstanding share options had weighted average
remaining contractual life of 0.5 year).

* The above information has been adjusted to reflect the effect of the
share consolidation on 27 February 2012 pursuant to which every 5 of
the existing issued and unissued shares of HK$0.001 each in the share
capital of the Company were consolidated into 1 consolidated share
of HK$0.005 each. Every 5 of the options were consolidated into 1
consolidated option and the exercise prices were adjusted accordingly.

BRAZBERERRHAHE2S8REBE 8=
20165 12A3TE L E - 45 T 1B B ARUE#
B AR S22 5 5 49406,00078 7T 2 5T A 4R
EEaElEBEEEAR  HESECFTA
RERCHE R 4 - Y 4 b DARSCRE A8 B DA R 0 S A
ZRPHEREIE -

HE2016F12A31MALLFE - MREHER
BT 2 B 2 A F{E 43,655,000 ;T E T
AREBEREMZEERAR  HESED
AR RS -

REE2016F12A3MH EFE - #EHBERK
RUWE N ERERIET -

PRERBREDIRBEEBM B MEEAFE2HRA
AR o ROE R M R TT 182 2 BB AU (2016%F -
R RATE 2 BB INIE F IO RIER A M F IR
0.5%) °

* FEHE FHRE  URBEAR2012628278 2K
HEMZEE Bt ARBRATFERERERE
BO.00VETTZ BB EETRABITRO & HA—
[& G RRE(E0.0058 T 2 & ik - S RMERIES
HhR—HAEMNERE  BITEEMMELARARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

28. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are:

- to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern;

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders; and

- to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost
of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders and issue new shares to
reduce its debt level.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided
by total capital. Total borrowings are calculated as current
and non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position and total capital is calculated
as "total equity”, as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as
follows:

28. EXER

AEEZEREEBRMOT :

- BMRAEEENFELE

- REREHRFEEEER: K

- HBREEARBUREERKA -

BREXBERERRE  ARET LR E
BRRTRAZBS  BRESTRERE
TR AR B KT -

AEERBEAABLREREER - ZE
AEBEHLERREERBHRIABERTE -1
REMBRRKRAT  EERBREANE
MRARIRZ RBEFERBIEETE  BE
RAZ (S REIE -

EXREELR

RE|BEMEKR - EARBHLEDT

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Total borrowings -k 49,516 43,923
Total equity AR 7.376 20,671
Gearing ratio BEREEL X 671% 212%
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

158

29. €T A

29.1 CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 1EMIBE2ESE
Financial assets THEE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Loans and receivables: BERREWRFRIE :
Financial assets included in AB S RHEAMEWKIE S
trade and other receivables TREE 4,247 1,403
Amount due from a related company fEU — R & A Bl FUE 574 -
Amount due from a non-controlling FEYH B A Rl 2 eI iR i =
interest of a subsidiary 2 FIE 1,500 1,497
Cash and bank balances (including Re RiRTTHES (BEERE
pledged bank deposit) H|ITFER) 59,173 24,033
Financial liabilities 2HERE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial liabilities REBHASIBEZEHERF:
at amortised cost:
Financial liabilities included in trade AR 5 RH At E A FRIR
and other payables ZERAas 8,845 7,776
Amount due to an intermediate FEA R I3 B A B FRIE
holding company 598 -
Amount due to a non-controlling FERTH B AR 2 e R =
interest of a subsidiary 2 5RIA - 472
Convertible bonds AR ES 49,516 43,923
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n D WIS ¥R Bl ot

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. €MIT A )

29.2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 2920 BEMEE B ERBRE

AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its
use of financial instruments in its ordinary course of
operations and in its investment activities. The financial
risks include market risk (including foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the
Group's headquarters, in close co-operation with the
board of directors. The overall objectives in managing
financial risks focus on securing the Group’s short to
medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to
financial markets. Long term financial investments are
managed to generate lasting returns with acceptable
risk levels.

It is not the Group’s policy to actively engage in
the trading of financial instruments for speculative
purposes. The treasury department works under the
policies approved by the board of directors. It identifies
ways to access financial markets and monitors the
Group's financial risk exposures. Regular reports are
provided to the board of directors.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

AEERMNAREESRERRERYF
EREE T AMESMERR - 7R
REEmSEAR (BEIMNERR - FIX
R EEBERRR) - EERR MR
PETRAR -

AEERMEEZTSRETAE  BHAE
B HER - WHEREEREERAE
ERERMSZEARRERE  LRE
HEHNETHMRASRE - AEEEAR
AR ZBEBKFEZIERT - EBIEF
FHeRRENELREDR -

AEETTREBSEREET 22/
TARS - WERREFTSHAE ZHE
T HBBEASRMSZTE X
ERASERHZHBRR - BRESE
HEHMEEERER

AEBSRTAMEY 2 RREL R
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

160

29.2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

29.2.1Market risk

Foreign currency risk management

Transactional currency exposures arise from
revenue or cost of sales by operating units
in currencies other than the unit's functional
currency. Substantially all the Group’s revenue
and cost of sales are denominated in the
functional currency of the operating units making
the revenue, and substantially all the cost of sales
are denominated in the operating unit’s functional
currency. Accordingly, the directors consider
the Group is not exposed to significant foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

In virtue of exposures on foreign currency
risk being minimal, the respective quantitative
disclosures have not been prepared.

29. €T A (%)

2920 AR ERE B ERBKR (#)

29.2.1 5 7 B
SME B S B HE

RpUEERARELENAEER
UIhaE MM ERHEZ 2EE
72 Wk SHERA - REBBKA
SHMENHERANEERAZ
BEBM R ERIIE . BBX
SHHENANE BB 2INEEE
BIE - At EER/AKEAL
EHEBREASMNER R - AEBIRE
WEINEERIRER - A - EHEE
SERINERE - UNEFER
ZEEERINERRIELE D

ENIMER M T RE - B
BREEECERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. €MIT A )

29.2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

2920 HEMEEBEERBEK &)

29.2.1Market risk (Continued) 2921 B BB (45)

Interest rate risk management

The Group does not have material exposure to
interest rate risk. A reasonably possible change
in interest rate in the twelve months is assessed,
which could have immaterial change in the
Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses.
Changes in interest rates have no material impact
on the Group’s other components of equity. The
Group adopts centralised treasury policies in
cash and financial management and focuses on
reducing the Group's overall interest expenses.

The directors are of the opinion that the Group's
sensitivity to the change in interest rate is
relatively low.

Other price risk
As the Group has no significant investments

in financial assets at FVTPL, the Group is not
exposed to significant other price risk.

29.2.2Credit risk management

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amounts of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Fl|E & 2 & HE

AEEYEBEAN KRR - NEH
BT —EARNEZ SRR
e HUAKEZRBRERR
RABRABER ZEFHTAK - 7
REHHAEEE MR T
SEREATE - ARERREE R
IS E R R R - A&
FRBEREENERNEFX -

FFRE - AEEYFELHH
B BIE -

L1 (E 15 /2 B2

MR AEERZ A FEF AR
ZERMEEVEREARE  MA%
B EEMBEABRERR -

292215 B BB EE

M2017F 128318 - AR S8 F
ReEBOTEEMEREBERZE
BEEsASEESEERR - E
EBEREEUBRAEXMY &
HrmRemEECKREME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

162

29.2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

29.2.2Credit risk management (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and debt investment at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit ratings, the Group does not have
any other significant concentration of credit risk.

29.2.3Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework to meet the Group's
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

29. €T A (%)

2928 KEREEEBERBEK#)

2922 B BB EE ()

RREEERR  AEEEEED
RIRNEBEEFIEREE £
EREL  WHRITHMBERERR
VA B £ PR BUBR #E 45 fts U [ 8 H 1
I8 o AN - AEERERE R RE
1 5 & 5 & Yk 1B R B A
AU SRR - DARELR BL R REUR B Ay
MR R AERERIR o Blitm
B ARREER/AKENEER
Rl B KR D

nBEEZEERBRER - REE
RGEHHEBBEEETREE
BRTREEENMZRIT -

BREIBEFTREREZRARRE
EFRZRITZRDESZEE
RSN AEERAEREMEE
RgmEREFOER -

2923 B ELEBEEE

EESHRPECRREEAER
BREMT WERIBBEZRPES
EfSEIRZRE - LR R AEE B
B FHERPESRRBESE
BEK-

AEBEBER TR 2B R

BELEANERBESRE - AN
CEMEERABZIHER

PChC - BB EERDESER

CHINA NETCOM TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n D WIS ¥R Bl ot

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

29.2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

29.2.3Liquidity risk management (Continued)

The maturity profile of the Group's financial

29. €M T A (%)

2920 HEMEEBEERBEK &)

2922 B M EE ()

RB|EMER - REBERE KRR

liabilities at the end of the reporting period, based BRRFE 2R EERHBER
on the contractual undiscounted payments, was O
as follows:
Total
On demand contractual Total
or less than undiscounted carrying
1 year 1-5years  cash flows amounts
REXT EHNRERR
—£R) —ZHE EHREHE IREAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TERT THERT
At 31 December 2017 2017%12831A1
Non-derivative financial ETELBAR
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEN; AIE 8,845 - 8,845 8,845
Amount due to an intermediate JEAT R R A A
holding company 598 - 598 598
Convertible bonds kR ESR - 68,016 68,016 49,516
9,443 68,016 77,459 58,959
Total
On demand or contractual Total
less than undiscounted carrying
1 year 1-5 years cash flows amounts
BEXR BHNRUBFR
—FR —ERF EMEBE FE&E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TET
At 31 December 2016 "2016F12A831R
Non-derivative financial ETECRER
liabilities
Trade and other payables SR EMEMNFIE 7,776 - 7,776 7,776
Amount due to a non-controlling  ENMERF 2
of a subsidiary IR 2 FE 472 - 472 472
Convertible bonds BB ES - 68,016 68,016 43,923
8,248 68,016 76,264 52,171
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n o WIS ¥R Bl ot

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
29.3FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on
a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are
required)

Except as detailed in the following table, the directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets

29. €T A (%)

293 F{EFTE

WHREEMBEREL L FEGTEZLH
EEHSHBERN L FE(BXEEL
AFERE)

BRTRAFIEI  EFTRBNEAH
BHREAERZEMEERERABZR

and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated HAEAEAFERE
financial statements approximate to their fair values.
2017 2016
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
IR & NEE FmEE ~TE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT FAT FAT
Financial liabilities cHEs
Convertible bonds (Note) AR ES () 49,516 51,170 43,923 45,261
Note: BisE

The fair value of the liability component of convertible bonds has been
calculated by using effective interest rate of 11.32% (2016: 11.79%) per
annum with reference to the Hong Kong Sovereign Curve and credit
risk margin.

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2017

AMREFBEHH 2 AFEDERFE11.32E
(20165F : N79E) 2 BERENE WL ZRBEEE
Mg RiEBEEBFIEmMHE -

A2017F12831B 22 FEER

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: DWEATFEAG
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& B B=H #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THET
Convertible bonds AR ES - - 51,170 51,170
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 29. €MIT A )

29.3FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on
a recurring basis (but fair value disclosures are
required) (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016

293X EFE#E)

WHBREEMEREL L FEGTEZLH
BEEHRTHEMBY N FE (BLEELH
RFPERE) (E)

MN2016E12 8318 2 A FEE K

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: EFEATEZEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE— B B, FoRy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FiET FET
Convertible bonds AR &S - - 45,261 45,261

The fair value of the financial liability included in
the Level 3 category above has been determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on a discounted cash flow analysis.

ERFAZ=ZFERZEBMBEZAF
HEREBEENMBERSRESNTZA
EEREEE

=7
[T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 30.
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

MEETDHELECEEHER

TRANAEEREZDHELZBEE
BRASMIIRCEY REIDELEZA
BEHRSRECKAARAKASREFENA
SEZGARERERTOBRARERD 2
BeRnE8ZRE-

Amount

due to an

intermediate
holding  Convertible

company bonds Total
EM
AR
DERE MERES @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2017 2017118 - 43,923 43,923
Cash inflow: Rene:
Advance from an intermediate holding HREER AR R
company 10,755 - 10,755
Non-cash transactions: HRERH
Effective interest on convertibles AHRREFZBER S
bonds - 5,593 5,593
Deemed capital contribution by an BAEPEHERAEEE
intermediate holding company (Note 31) (BFzE31) (10,157) - (10,157)
At 31 December 2017 2017F12A31H 598 49,516 50,114
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fno B SR M st

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

In December 2017, gross amount of approximately
HK$10,157,000 was waived by M B4 @4 M AR A
Al (transliterated as Hangzhou Enniu Network Technology
Company Limited®) (an intermediate holding company of
the Group) through capitalisation of the amount due, before
taking into account the PRC Enterprise Income Tax effect
of approximately HK$529,000 (Note 9). The net amount was
recognised in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity accordingly.

# English name for identification purpose only

OPERATING LEASES COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

31.

32.

FEFREXS

R20175F128 - BB ENECEBEEE - MM
BAMEGERMARAR (KRR HREZER A
a)) # % RIR A EE 410,157,000/ 7T - I ST
Ko B 2 P15 B %2 2 49529,00058 7T (Fft &
9) e RRIEFHRMER AR BB RTHE

7
e

REHEERE

NEEME - AEERN A THEES
FUHHEERE Y A RRIERSERARE
mF -

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

THExT T

Within one year R—FR 2,394 1,530
In the second to fifth years inclusive —ERAF(BREEEMF) 613 1,669
3,007 3,199

Operating leases relate to rented premises and equipment
with lease terms of between 1 to 5 years (2016: 1 to 5 years),
with no option to renew the lease terms at the expiry date.
The lease does not include contingent rental.

PERBERERDR o 2017FF K

KREMEEBHPA/A—ERF (2016F : —EH
FIZHEMENRE  BIRRAATELD - %
EROE AR EHNAEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

33.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had the following

BEARELE

R2017F12A31H  REBEHEE UL T AR

commitments which were not provided for in the BTSRRI
consolidated financial statements:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THE T FAT
Authorised and contracted for: FEERBETA
Purchase of property, plant and BEYWE BERSE
equipment 35 144
34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS . FHEEALIRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial BRaETBHREREMTOMBEEN K&
statements, the Group had the following significant BFNEFHEATHEEUNTEARS
transactions with related parties during the year:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Early redemption of convertible bonds IRAIER TR ES (ME23)
(Note 23) - 36,084
Interest income from a related company KB —fEEBE QR ZF WA
(Note) (P 5E) 4 -
Note: PEE -

The interest income is from Jb R HEEE K 22 {5 BRI AR AR in which
Mr. Sun Haitao, a substantial shareholder, the chairman and executive

director of the Company, has beneficial interests.

168

FEMBATI R B R R 2 (5 B R BEMBER AR A
RAFERR TRRATEEREERERZARAS

Bl o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

34

EBEALIXRR &)

TEEEABHM

FAN - EFRETZETEFBHMKE MW
T

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHETT
Short-term benefits 52 HAfE A 2,637 7,316
Post-employment benefits BIEEREE A 18 36
2,655 7,352

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 35. REHEREE

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period in January
2018, convertible bonds with aggregate principal amount
of HK$50,000,000 were converted into ordinary shares of
HK$0.005 each of the Company at the conversion price
of HK$1.20 per share. Accordingly, a total of 41,666,666
ordinary shares at HK$0.005 each were issued to the
holder of convertible bonds. Please refer to note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements for details of the
convertible bonds.

HEH KL N2018F 1A KL EH
50,000,000/ 7t 2 A] # AR (& 5 LA & 18 1.20/8 7T
ZEBMEER AR QT ER0.005% T 2 il
i% - 8 FE 2 1T & 41,666,666 & §0.00575
T EBRTARKRES2FEAEA - BEA
BBRELFNTE  BL2HEEMEREMNTE
23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36. R AFIZEEMBATRFE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 R2017F12A3MBARFI 2 EEZH B QA

170

December 2017 are as follows:

ICEUNNE

¥

oy

Particulars of issued Proportion of ownership
Place of incorporation/  and fully paid share interest held by
Name of subsidiary registration/operations  capital/registered capital the Company Principal activities
HRRL/ R/ BRORARKRE/ Yk
WEARAR BEny ERERFE fEERREA  IEER
Directly Indirectly
E% B
E-silkroad.net Corporation British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 1 United 100% - Investment holding
('BVI") States dollar ("USS")
EERAHE REREEIET REBR
(%)) 2 & Bk
Easywin Interational Holdings Limited BYI Tordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
BRERZRER AT EERAEE REREEIET RARR
LERR
Pearl Sharp Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
EtERAT RERAEE REREEIZT REBR
LERMR
E-silkroad.net Online Exhibition Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000 - 100%  Provision of administrative Services
Eh 10000872 LBk RETHRTS
Greatest Profit Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HKS1 - 100%  Investment holding
Eh BT EBR REaRR
Hui S Hung Table Tennis Sports Hong Kong Ordlinary shares HK$5,000,000 - 60%  Provision of sports training Services
Centre Limited
FRIEEREETLERLT 3 5,000,000 T2 £ Bk REEEIRRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

6. RATZEENBRAAFE &)

Particulars of issued Proportion of ownership
Place of incorporation/  and fully paid share interest held by
Name of subsidiary registration/operations  capital/registered capital the Company Principal activities
EREL/ER/ BRARARRA/ Yk
WEARER Beny dhExzFE fiEgREEAE  IEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# B
Huancai Puda* PRC RMBA41,819,548 (2016 - 51%  Development of computer software,
RMBA41,819,548) hardware and application system, sale of
self-cieveloped technology or results and
provision of relevant technical consultancy
services
R EE mE ARS41,819,5487 REERGN BUERERZS HERTRE
(20165 - JBIERE  RERBREEARY
AR H41,819,54870)
MIEEFERERRERA T PRC HKS7,500,000 (2016 - 100%  Development, production, wholesale, retail
HK$5,500,000) and provision of relevant supporting services
in related to wearable devices, smart
glasses, smart watches, smart bracelets,
communication equipment, electronic
components and electronic products;
sale and development of communication
devices, computer software, hardware, data
terminal technology, mobile digital data
communication devices; development and
provision of gaming and animation creation
technology and services; and import and
export and provision of relevant supporting
services
mE 7,500,000 7 (2016 - ﬁ% E 2% TERRETFERE B
5,500,000 )

FREERTR BETER BRRE 2
%M#&%%Em HERHERARE €
Bl HERGR BBETEE
BAGE FRERRHREBEDZAERTR
BE RELORREEE SRS
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36. X RFZEEMBRABTFE &)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Particulars of issued Proportion of ownership
Place of incorporation/ and fully paid share interest held by
Name of subsidiary registration/operations  capital/registered capital the Company Principal activities
ERRL/ER/ BRARARRA/ Yk
Gl PEEE Beny ERERGE fiEgREEAE  TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E% 3
AR EERAERAA PRC HK$5,000,000 (2016 - 100%  Development of computer hardware and
(formerly known as FHIZ 5 8 HK$1,500,000) software technology, private data terminal
BRBRLRA) technology, data processing and database
(IRANRREERRBRAE) technology and mobile network; development

and technology transfer of digital mobile
communication network equipment;
(evelopment and provision of gaming and
animation creation technology services,
provision of financial technology services;
and wholesale, import and export of
office automation system equipment and
communication equipment and provision of
relevant supporting services

il 5,000,000/ 7T (2016 : RBEREE RGOSR LABB LR

1,500,000% 72 YERERUBERRGHAE  gBHY

BRERRE RERRNES REREL
PREDRERIRARSE  RESHBER
B RUBERELDELEDZARERER
- ARRREE SRS

NS EEEEEER AR PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Provision of asset management, industrial
investment, investment management,
investment consulting services, development,
provision of consultation and result transfer
on network technology, computer software
and hardware and computer network
engineering; provision of second category
value-added telecommunications services,
and other legal projects that do not require
approval

HE AR%10,0000007 RUEAEER TERE REEE REZD
B%RE REZARBERN  ERAH
REHRERERIERRER REECH
PREERRS  RENESLE ERER
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

* Huancai Puda is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the
PRC.

o FNBARE BRI ER AR and RYIKEFEHZXERERBR LA are
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises established in the PRC.

ko IME EEBIEAR AR s a limited liability company established in
the PRC. The equity interest is held by an individual nominee on behalf
of the Group.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling
interests:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

Proportion of
ownership interests
held by the

6. RATZEENBRAAFE &)

RYEENRPRKIZ PG ELERT -

o BUUNBMK(E SRR BER QR RRIIRE FE R ER
BRAEBRRBADIRPBEKIZIEBERE -

o MMEBREERAERAR N -RRPEKIZAE
RAT - xEBEH - BEARSARKAEER
5-

ERAFIZARABMBLRA  DEERRY
AEBEGEHREEBKNEATEZMNER
Al-BERA FVNEGBHBARESHA
TEBRITE

BAEAKRRMSZH2ENED
Az B

TRENAEEBESEAFEREEZZIFEE
Wi AR Z RIS

Loss allocated to Accumulated

and principal non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary place of business interests interests interests
AL AR i B RS SEEFER
MEARER REBEXBHY FREEEERE S EReER REFERER
2017 2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET TET FET
Huancai Puda PRC 49% (23,073) (6,098) (2,271) 18,930
RYEE f
Individually immaterial
subsidiary with

non-controlling interest
B HERER 2 ER
EERWBAA

1,989 1,993

(282) 20,923
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36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

36. A RFRIZEEMBABFE &)

DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED BREEAFEREZZHEZTEHREL
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- AZHEE#E)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's BRAEBEERFERERZHBARZ
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set HHRERBEHIWOT - U THBHERHE
out below. The summarised financial information below IRE BRI HEATAEE -

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

Huancai Puda REZE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current assets MEEE 509 948
Non-current assets IEREBEE 385 61,231
Current liabilities mEasE (4,564) (7,437)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - (15,145)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
2= HE
20175 20164
12A31H 12H31H
IEFEE HFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FATT
Revenue W 2= 181 336
Other income and gain H Ab g A R e 25 3,312 352
Expenses 2 (50,581) (12,859)
Loss for the year REFERE (47,088) (12,171)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36. KATZETERBATEES )
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED BEEAEEREREZEHEA
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- TS )

CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Huancai Puda (Continued) B ()
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
BZE H=E
2017 20164
12H31H 12H31H
“FE IHEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss attributable to owners of RAaEE AEIEEE
the Company (24,015) (6,073)
Loss attributable to the non-controlling FEVE R R 25 FE (G B 1B
interests (23,073) (6,098)
Loss for the year KEEZEE (47,088) (12,171)
Other comprehensive expense for the year AEEE iz AL 3,821 (4,674)
Total comprehensive expense attributable AN EIHHB AB(LERE F S 4258
to owners of the Company (22,066) (8,458)
Total comprehensive expense IR R ELRE AT EE
attributable to the non-controlling
interests (21,201) (8,387)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ARFELRE S B (43,267) (16,845)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests X~ FFE1E M HE2E 2 IR B - -
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36. A RFRIZEEMBRATFHRE &)

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED

BREEAFERES2HZEWBEL

SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- T2 E &)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)
Huancai Puda (Continued) BEEZE(E)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
BE HE
20175 20165
12831H 12A31H
IEEE WEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating &&EBIVLHA CRHl) F5E
activities 193 (556)
Net cash inflow from investing activities — & XEKR R AFRE - 1
Net cash inflow from financing activities — REEEEIR S M AEE - -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash  R& NMIREZEE N (Ohd) F5E
equivalents 193 (555)

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARY
IN WHICH THE EQUITY INTEREST IS HELD BY

INDIVIDUAL NOMINEE ON BEHALF OF THE

GROUP

The summarised financial information below represents

amounts before intragroup eliminations.

RER-BEARBARREIEER
BeHBARzMBER

VAT B 75 B R 22 45 5% (8 ) 59 5 A A %R o

2017

HK$'000

FERT

Revenue W s -

Loss for the year RFEEIE (4,811)

Net assets BETE 13,607
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 37. KRR 2 BERR R RE
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAETT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment = 80 -
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIKE - -
80 -
Ccurrent assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TR - e R E U ERIE
receivables 236 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries A= NGIE O 55,137 104,540
Bank balances RITEE R 34,414 19,666
89,787 124,206
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals Hibh N FRIBRIEFER 1,937 825
Amounts due to subsidiaries JFEA B B A RIFRIA 28,773 55,727
30,710 56,552
Net current assets FBEEFRHE 59,077 67,654
Total assets less current liabilities HWEEBRBEE 59,157 67,654
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Convertible bonds AR ES 49,516 43,923
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBRE 3,052 3,975
52,568 47,898
Net assets EEFE 6,589 19,756
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital - ordinary shares % AR — 3 23,147 15,600
Share capital - non-redeemable A& AR — 1~ A] B (| A] R AR 1B S AR
convertible preferred shares - 5,017
Reserves & (16,558) (861)
Total equity ERBE 6,589 19,756
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

37. KRR 2B MR R R FEE 2

(Continued)
MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY'’S RESERVES KPRz EES
Share Capital  Convertible Share
premium redemption bonds equity options Accumulated
account reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BAE  UERES
B & ER BEf#E Enfite BRERE ZitER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAL TEL TEL TAEL TEL
(Note (i) (Note (i)
(GE) (B E(i)
Balance at 1 January 2016 R2016E1A1B 2 &8 3,348,003 1 29,735 32,7122 (3,353,852) 56,609
Loss for the year TEERR - - - - (48,581) (48,581)
Total comprehensive expense AEEGARYERE

for the year - - - - (48,581) (48,581)
Recognition of equity- settled BRNREEENRR

share-based payments SLPAE - - - 4,061 - 4,061
Redemption of convertible bonds B EIAI ARk E% - - (15,824) - 444 (15,380)
Deferred tax relating to convertible  A[#RES 2 BEHE

honds - - 2,430 - - 2,430
Balance at 31 December 2016and ~ #2016%F12A318 &

1 January 2017 017F1R1B 7 &% 3,348,003 1 16,341 36,783  (3,401,989) (861)
Loss for the year AEEESB - - - - (57,020) (57,020)
Total comprehensive expense for ~ AEELABT AR

the year - - - - (57,020) (57,020)
Issue of ordinary shares under REBREZTLER

share option scheme 15,791 - - (4,479) - 11,312
Release of reserve upon share RERELN%

options lapsed BmkE - - - (32,304) 32,304 -
Issue of new ordinary shares BOMLER 30,030 - - - - 30,030
Transaction cost attributable to issue 27757 & &R E {5

of new ordinary shares ZRBHA (19) - - - = (19)
Balance at 31 December 2017 20175128318 2% 3,393,805 1 16,341 - (3,426,705) (16,558)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 37. KRB 2 BRI R REE 2

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY’'S RESERVES KRR Z#EEEE (&)

(Continued)

Notes: B & -

(i) The share premium account of the Company arises on shares issued 0] RARRMDBEERNREEBRITROHBES - IRIE
at a premium. In accordance with the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 FHERBERNTNEE22E (196 1FFBIMEEN - Biga
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share RIEFT) - RO BREERAIDIRAEARRIRE - HR
premium account is distributable to the shareholders of the Company ZREEFRER S AR AQRIBREBNA B
provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is BHRZABIEES - RODIRERMATUBRARS
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be able to pay its debts KK °

as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium
account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

(i) The capital redemption reserve of the Company represents the nominal (i) /NG = N A T R N/NGT IR NS L 0N
value of the share capital of the Company repurchased and cancelled. HEME -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hEEhmERite

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A3MBLEE
2013F 20144 2015% 20165 20175
(Restated)
(E5)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHT FTAT TAT THER
RESULTS E4
Revenue Wz 1,731 3,533 964 2,011 28,303
Loss for the year rEERHE (118,816) (330,081) (60,326) (43,144) (71,371)
Loss attributable to: THATEEERE:
Owners of the Company VN/NGIEZEIN (75,325) (186,051) (54,679) (37,043) (48,293)
Non-controlling interests ST (43,491) (144,030) (5,647) (6,101) (23,078)
(118,816) (330,081) (60,326) (43,144) (71,371)
At 31 December
®12A31AH
20139 20144 20154 20165 2017%&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT TET THERT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Total assets mEE 533,508 167,824 173,145 92,088 70,500
Total liabilities BEE (247,232) (131,427) (95,588) (71,417) (63,124)
286,276 36,397 77,557 20,671 7,376
Equity attributable to owners R A RIS AJE(G S
of the Company 105,501 1,103 48,244 (252) 7,658
Non-controlling interests IR = 180,775 35,294 29,313 20,923 (282)
286,276 36,397 77,557 20,671 7,376
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